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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

GENERAL INFORMATION

NATURE OF BUSINESS
Emalahleni Municipality is a local municipality performing the functions as set oul in the Constitution. (Act no 108 of 1996)

COUNTRY OF ORIGIN AND LEGAL FORM

Emalahleni Municipality is a South African Category B Municipality (Local Municipality) as defined by the Municipal Struciures Act.
{Act no 117 of 1998)

JURISDICTION
The Emalahleni Municipality includes the following towns and surrounding rural areas:

Dorgrecht
Indwe
Lady Frere

MUNICIPAL MANAGER
Dr. S. W. Vatala

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
GP De Jager

REGISTERED OFFICE
Emalahleni Municipality, 37 Indwe Road; Lady Frere; 5410

AUDITORS
Office of the Auditor General

PRINCIPLE BANKERS
Standard Bank; 92 Cathcart RD; Queenstown; 5320

RELEVANT LEGISLATION

Municipal Finance Management Act (Act no 56 of 2003)
Division of Revenue Act

The Income Tax Act

Value Added Tax Act

Municipal Structures Act (Act no 117 of 1998)

Municipa! Systems Act (Act no 32 of 2000}

Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations
Water Services Act (Act no 108 of 1997)

Housing Act {Act no 107 of 1997)

Municipal Property Rates Act {Act no 6 of 2004}
Electricity Act (Act no 41 of 1987)

Skills Development Levies Act {Act no 9 of 1998)
Employment Equity Act (Act no 55 of 1938)
Unemployment Insurance Act (Act no 30 of 1966)

Basic Conditions of Employment Act (Act no 75 of 1997)
Supply Chain Management Regulations, 2005
Collective Agreements

Infrastructure Grants

SALBC Leave Regulations
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COUNCILLORS

1 Nyukwana, N.
2 Lali, N.

3 Liwani, S.

4 Kalolo, D.S.
5 Kutashe, T,

6 Twala, B.P.

7 Nkasela, K.

8 Mool, L.

o Koni, N.F.
10 Ziduli, N.

11 Bobotyana, H.C.

12 Mapete, P.
13 Qashani, N.
14 Peter, N.

15 Nobaza, P.

16 Dudumashe, T.R.

17 Gwegwana, L.
18 Teka, Z.H.

19 Dyonase, Z.
20 Kraga, N.

21 Godla, M.

22 Mnyuko, S.
23 Komani, B.
24 Papiso, Z.

25 Jordaan, V.
26 Dlikilili, N.

27 Holana, N.

28 Ndlela, T.R.
29 Mjezu, K.

30 Greyling, P.
31 Mketsu, Z.
32 Kwatshana, T.
33 Sixishe, TD.
34 Boklaini, SN

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

MEMBERS OF THE EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

Mayor

Speaker

Chief Whip

Executive Commitiee
Executive Commitiee
Executive Committee
Executive Committee part time

Chariperson of Section 79 Commitiee

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councilior
Councillor
Councillor
Councilior
Councilior
Councillor

ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
ANC
uDM
ANC
DA
UDM
DA
COPE
PAM
ANC
ANC
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Mayor Ward 8

Speaker Ward 13

Executive Committee Ward 6
Executive Committee Ward 7
Executive Committee Ward 11
Executive Committee Ward 10
Executive Committee Ward 2
Ward Coungcillor 2

Ward Councillor 1

Ward Coungillor 3

Ward Councillor 4

Ward Councillor 5

Ward Councillor 6

Ward Councillor 7

Ward Councillor 8

Ward Councillor 9

Ward Councillor 10

Ward Councillor 11

Ward Councillor 12

Ward Councillor 13

Ward Councillor 14

Ward Councillor 15

Ward Councillor 16

Proportional Ward 17

Proportional Ward 4

Proportional Ward 14

Proportional Ward 17

Proportional Ward 12

Proportional Ward 10

Propontional Ward 14

Proportional Ward &

Propodional Ward 16

Proportional Ward 3

Proportional Ward 10



APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements year ended 30 June 2015, which
are set out on pages 1 o 94 in lerms of Section 126 (1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act and
which | have signed on behalf of the Municipality. The annual financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with GRAP.

| acknowledge that | am ullimately responsible for the system of inlernal financial contro! and that the
system of intemal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records can be relied on.

| have reviewed the Municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2016 and is safisfied that the
Municipality can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the Municipality's
financial statements.

| certify that the remuneration of Councillors and in-kind benefits are within the upper limits of the framework
envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Officer Bearers Act and
the Minister of Provincial and Local Government's delermination in accordance with this Act.

30 AUGUST 2015

Dr. 5W—Vatats— Date
ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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EMALAHLENI LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1.

INTRODUCTION
It gives me great pleasure to present the financial position of EMALAHLENI LOCAL MUNICIPALITY for the fiscal year 2012/2043

In rendering a corporate financial management service 1o all departments, the Finance Department's primary objective is 1o assist
the Municipal Manager and Senior Management to manage their budgets and ensure the effective application of financial
resources in rendering services to the community.

Emalahleni Municipality is now compliant with the requirements of GRAP. It has been a long, difficult and very expensive process,
the worth of which is at best minimal. In times when municipalities are battling to balance their budgets and when there is littla or
no local economic growth, to be able to know what the depreciated replacement cost of a pipe buried three metres under the
ground beggars belief. It was once said that municipal financials were opaque and there was truth in that statement, but in making
them less opaque and embracing transparency, we have assumed thal people will undersiand them better and, even more so,
that they actually care about what they are reading. People, just like banks and credit agencies, want lo know what the budget is,
what the debtors are like and have you gol cash to pay your creditors. Nothing we have done in the last six years, in order to
reach GRAF compliance, changes that.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

The economic downlurn and the Eskom issues continue to play havoc with good financial management. The Emalahleni economy
has been battered of fate and all indications are that it will get worse before it gets better.

This is not because of bad or incompetent management, but because it is the nature of the business and the economy. | would
therefore hope thal National and Provincial bureaucrals take heed of this fact before making any incorrect or ill-conceived
stalemenis or judgements.

Financial Statement Ratics:

INDICATOR 20142015 201372014

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year before Appropriations (11 156 838) {5 545 828)
Accumuilated Surplus / (Deficit) at the end of the Year 458 286 485 469 543 326
Expenditure Categories as a percentage of Total Expenses:
Employee related costs 23.53% 24.40%
Remuneration of Councillors 5.56% 6.34%
Debt Impairment 7.46% 0.58%
Depreciation and Amortisation 12.14% 13.16%
Impairments 5.09% 7.34%
Repairs and Maintenance 2.80% 2.26%
Actuarial losses 0.00% 0.51%
Finance Charges 0.43% 0.45%
Bulk Purchases 8.15% 8.30%
Contracted services 3.06% 2.60%
Operating Grant Expenditure 12.69% 12.48%
General Expenses 18.47% 16.13%
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.63% 5.44%
Fair Value Adjustments 0.00% 0.00%
Current Ralio;

Creditors Days a6 120

Debtors Days 1305 2624

One indicator needing comment is that of repairs and maintenance. In recent years there has been made much comments as to
how low this ration is. It should be noted that the ratio improvement has been achieved despite the massive increases in Eskom

charges.
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. OPERATING RESULTS

The overall operating results for the y

ear ended 30 June 2015 are as follows:

Actual Actuat Percentage Budgeted Variance actual/
DETAILS 2014/2015 2013/2014 Variance 2014/2015 budgeted
R R % R %

Income:
Opening surplus / (deficit) 469 543 326 475089 154 -1.17%| 469919148 -
Operating Income for the year {incl.
gains in disposal of assets) 170 634 412 152 035 689 12.23%| 203104 747 -15.99%
Appropriations for the year - 0.00% -

640 177 737 627 124 843 2.08%] 673 023 895 -4.88%
Expenditure:
Operating expenditure for the year 181 791 250 154 748 167 17.48%| 202 968 746 -10.43%
Sundry transfers - - 0.00% - -
Closing surplus / {deficit) 458 386 487 472 376 675 -2.96%| 470 055 149 -

640177 737 627 124 843 2.08%| 673023 895 -4.88%
Closing surplus / (deficit) 458 386 487 460 543 326 -2.38%

. FINANCING OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment during the year amounted to R 38 175 478 (2013/2014: R 37 101 365 ), and in
percentage terms amounts to 93.93% of budget. Full details of Property, Plant and Equipment are disclesed in note number 10 to

the Annual Financial Statements.

The capital expenditure of R 38 175 478 [2014/15) was financed as follows:

Actual Budgeted Percentage Source of
DETAILS 2014/2015 2014/2015 Variance funding as %
R R % of total Cap exp
Appropriation Account (Own Funds) 6903034 | 10103500 68.32% 18.18%
External Loans - - - -
Grants and Subsidies 30399227 | 30537293 99.55% 80.04%
Leased Assets 678 074 - 100.00% -
Public Coniributions - - -
37980 335 | 40 640 793 93.45% 100.00%,
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5.1

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET TO ACTUAL

Operating Budget:
DETAILS 2014/2015
Variance per Category:
Budgeted surplus before appropriations (11 292 839)
Revenue variances {32 332 270)
Expenditure variances:
Executive and Council {2 363 687)
Budget and Treasury Office 1863 269
Corporate Services 21 246
Community and Social Services B 097 319
IPED (3 323 726)
Technical Services (3 076 653)
Actual surplus before appropriations {42 407 340)
DETAILS 201472015

Variance per Expenditure by Type:
Budgeted surplus before appropriations

Employee related costs
Remuneration of councillors
Debt impairment
Depreciation & asset impairment
Finance charges

Bulk purchases

Other materials

Contracted services

Grants and subsidies paid
Other expenditure

Loss on disposal of PPE

Actual surplus before appropriations

(11 292 B39)

(18 016 055)
(3651)

{4 158)
8229 820
111 829

(2 404 209)

(247 110)
91 175

(10 082 634)
1147 498

{32 470 336)

Details of the operating results per segmental classification of expenditure and of operational results per category of expenditure,
logether with an explanation of variances of more than 10% from budget, are included in Statement of Comparisons of Budget and

Actual Amounts

5.2 Capltal Budget:

Actual Budgeted Variance actual/
DETAILS 2014/2015 2014/2015 budgeted
R R R

Budget and Treasury 1511718 1512 000 (282)
Community and Social Services 24 030 825 25614 656 {1 583 831)
Corporate Services 457 623 458 000 (377)
Executive and Council 4277 127 4 325 000 (47 873)
IPED 712735 860 000 {147 265)
Technical Services 7 185 450 8 301 137 {1 115 687)
38175 478 41070793 (2 895 315}

Refer to Note number 11 and 36 for more detail.
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5.

10.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

2015 2014
R R

The outstanding amount of Long-term Liabilities as at 30 June was : 810 383 546 033
New loans taken up during the financial year to enable the municipality to
finance part of its capital requirements. 5 -
Refer to Note number 2 and Appendix "A” for more detall.
NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS AND NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Non-current Provisions and Employee Benefits at 30 June are made up as follows: 5536 817 8 793 293
Provision for Post Retirement Benefits 4328 789 5220472
Provision for Ex-Gratia Pension Benefils - -
Provision for Long Service Awards 1208 028 1453 534
Provision for Rehabilitation of Landfill-sites 0 2119287
Provision for Clearing of Alien Vegetalion - -

5536 817 8 793 293

These provisicns are made in order to enable the municipality to be in a position to fulfil its known legal obligations when they
become due and payable.

Refer to Notes number 3 and 4 for more detail.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Liabliities are made up as follows:
Consumer Deposils Nots Number 5 - -
Current Employee benefits Note Number 6 7097 272 6 129 053
Provisions Nole number 4 11514 635 648 650
Payables from exchange transactions tNote Number 7 15803 079 15077 414
Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipls Note Number 8 348 701 1801 337
Current Portion of Long-term Liabllities Note Number 2 263 459 311 289

35 027 146 23 967 753

Current Liabilities are those liabilities of the municipality due and payable in the short-lerm (less than 12 months). There is no
known reascn to why the municipality will not be able to meet ils obligations.

Refer to the indicated Note numbers for more detail.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The net value of Intangible Assets is: 206 752 258 564

These are assets which cannot physically be identified and verified and are all in respect of
Refer to Note Number 13 for more detail.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The net value of Property, Plant and Equipment is: 439 281 466 422 240 399

Refer to Note Number 10 for more detail.
INVESTMENTS

The municipality held Investments to the value of - 28 563 011 41 614 217

These Invesiments are ring-fenced for purposes of either the securily for and repayment of Long-term Liabilities, Unspent
Conditional Granis and Capita! Commitments.

Refer to Note Number 19 for more detail.
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11. CURRENT ASSETS

Current Assets are made up as follows:
Inventory
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange Iransactions
Unpaid Conditional Government Grants and Receipts
Operating Leasa Assel
Taxes
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Refer to the indicated Note numbers for more detail.

13. INTER-GOVERNMENTAL GRANTS

Note Number 15
Note Number 16
Nole Number 17
Note Number 8

MNote Number 18
Note Number 9

Note Number 19

- 618 865

17 964 462 10 402 833
39820135 5 860 616
- 34 684

77416 63 222
2077 851 2522 476
31776 400 50993 250
55 816 264 70 495 947

The municipality plays the major role in the upliftment of the poor and in sustaining and improving infrastructure for all its citizens
for which it uses grants received from government and other organisations, and thus it has a big responsibility as custodian of

these funds.

Refer to note 8 and 19 for more detall

14, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Full details of all events after reporting date are disclosed in note 44.

15. DISCLOSURE ISSUES

Possible cutflow of recourses due the contingent liability disclosed in note 47.

16. EXPRESSION OF APPRECIATION

| am grateful to the Municipal Manager, Directors and Heads of Departments for the support they extended during the financial

year.

The work involved in producing these financial statements just gets more detailed each year and therefore my heartfelt thanks

goes to my own staff at all levels and in all departments, for their hard work and dedication.

GP DE JAGER
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2015

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Net Assels
Accumulated Surplus/i{Deficit)
Non-Current Liabilitles

Long-term Liablities
Employae benefis
Non-Current Pravisions

Current Liabillties

Currenl Employes benefils

Provisions

Payables from exchange transaciions

Unspeant Conditional Government Grants and Recalpls
Current Porlion of Long-lerm Liabitities

Liabilitles essaciated with Discontinued Operations

Total Net Assats and Liabilities
ASSETS

Non-Current Assels

Property, Plant and Equipment
invesiment Property
Capitalised Restoralion cost
Intangible Assets

Herilage Assels

Current Assels 4

Invenlory

Receivables lrom exchanga transaclions
Receivables from non-exchange trandactions

Unpaid Conditional Governmenl Grants and Recelpts

Operating Lease Asset
VAT
Cash and Cash Equivaleg!se—
W CHIEF
A
Total Assels
2015 -12- 03

Page d

Notes

o~ oW

M~ W

10
11
12
13

14
15
16
17

18

2015 2014
R R

458 386 485 460 543 326
458 386 485 " 469 543 326
5241 283 953 820
546 024 234 735
5 694 350 6599 807
0 2 119 267
35027 146 23967 753
7007272 6129053
11514 635 648 650
15 803070 15077 414
348701 1801337
263 459 311299
2 265 884 ;
501 920 778 502 484 508
2445 104 515 431068 960
430 281 466 422 240 209
6433 761 8 394 358
. 951 638
206 752 258 564
182 536 124 000
55 816 264 70 495 947
. 618 865
17 964 462 10 402 833
3920135 5 860 616
i 34 684
77 418 63222
2 077 851 2522 476
31776 400 50 993 250
501020 779 502 464 90B

MUNICIPAL MANAGER'S OFFICE
AP PROVED

2005 -12- 03

MUNICIPAL MANAGER

E HLENI MUNICIPALITY
SIGN




EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2015

2015 2044
Notes Actual Restated
R R

REVENUE
Revenus from Non-gxchange Transaclons 148 3989 883 131289151
Taxatlan Revenue 3719278 3218438
Property rates 18 anezms [l sz1843s |
Transfer Revenus 143 279 952 126 638 577
Government Grants and Subsidies - Capilal 20 30 399 227 28 188 258
Governmenl Grents and Subsidies - Oparating 20 112 BAD 725 98 441 324
Giher Revenue 1390 653 1431138
Actuarial Galns 928 454 -
Reversal ol impairment 1034 3547
Fines 107 783 115438
Contributed Assels 346 075 1312150
Revenue from Exchange Transactions 22244 529 20 746 538
Service Charges 21 11 179543 10742672
Renfal of Facllifies and Equipment 720781 737 342
Interest Eamed - extemnal investmeanis 22 3348949 3004 555
Intetest Eamed - gulstanding debiors 22 3929602 3495172
Licences and Pemnits 452 097 383 000
Agency Services 65 702 61185
Qiher Income 23 2535 845 2322 599
Total Revenue 170 64 412 152 033 52%
EXPENDITURE
Employee relaled costs 24 42 782608 37 750 857
Remunerstion of Coungllicrs 25 10 103 758 8811645
Debt Impairment 26 13 567 042 885628
Depreciation and Amartisation 27 22 066 517 20 358 828
Impairments 10,11,12 9247 688 11354726
Repatrs and Mainlenance 29 5083 292 3502 964
Acluarial iosses 3 - 7981293
Finance Charges o 28 788 929 689788
Bulk Purchases 30 14 608 208 12 850 609
Conlracted services 5 554 350 4029759
Gther Operating Grand Expendiiure - k| 23060 456 19 330 609
Ganeral Expansas 32 33157185 24 261757
Loss on disposal of Propecy,Flanl and Equipment 1147 488 8418708
Tatal Expanditure 181 791 250 154 148 167
Distonlinued Cperations 50.2 b {2 833 350}

P — e ———
NET {CEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR {11 156 838} {5 545 828}

MUNICIPAL MANAGER'S t‘iFFfEft’_
APPROVEL>

2015 +12- 03

MUNICIPAL MANASER
1 MUNICIPALITY




EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEA]! ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Accumulaled
Surplusi{Deficit) L
R R
Batance at1 JULY 2013 475112 096 475112 086
Correction of errors (22 943} (22 543)
Restated Balance at 1 JULY 2013 475 089 154 475 GB9 154
Net Deficii {or the year (5 545 828) {5 545 828}
Balance at 30 JUNE 2014 469 543 326 4B9 543 326
Net Deficlt {or the year {11 156 838) (11 156 838)
Balance at 30 JUNE 2015 458 3B5 485 458 386 485
ANCIAL OFFICER
CH'EE;NPR OVED MUNICIPAL MANAGER'S OFFIiCE j
APPROVE D ’
2015 -12- 03 215 -12- 03
i
SIGN = i
EM Aflﬁﬁ&s_.gi UMACIPALITY

4

Page 11



EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

CASH FLLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

30 JUNE 2015 30 JUNE 2014
Notes R R
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recalpts
Ratepayers and other (410 345) 14 281 594
Govetnmen - operating 20 112880725 28 441 324
Government - capital 20 281881275 22739452
Interest 7279550 5493728
Paymenis
Suppllers (79574 671) (58 852 523)
Employees 24 (40 841 831) {37 764 676)
Councillors 25 (30 103 758) {9 811 645)
Finance charges 29 (57 785) (+37 287)
Cash generated by cperatlans 34 18 153 060 353959353
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Proparty, Plant and Equipment 9 (36 827 585) {36 89T 452}
Purchase ol Heritage Assets (58 528) {124 000}
Purchase of intangible Assels 12 (70 (O68) {77 913)
Net Cash from Investing Actlvities (38 956 187) (37 101 365)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans repeld (433 725) (306 352)
(Decrease)increase in Consumer Deposits - (110 146)
Net Cash from Financing Actlvitias (413 725) (418 439)
NET {INCREASE)} /DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {19°216 B51) {2121 910)
Cash ard Cash Eguivalents at the beginning of the year 50993 250 53115160
Cash ard Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 35 31776400 50 953 250
NET INCREASE / {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (19 215 B50) {2 121 918)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFIC M
OFFICER UNICIPAL MANAGER'S OFFICE]
APPROVED APPROVED |
| j
SIGN; Y, 4y / A
EMA MUNICIPALITY =
v
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

1. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES APPLIED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1.

1.2,

1.3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and
are in accordance with historical cost convention unless specified otherwise.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Municipal
Finance Management Act (MFMA) and effective standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practices (GRAP), including any interpretations and directives issued by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act, (Act No 56 of 2003).

Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the GRAP
reporting framework , have been developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of
GRAP 3 (Revised — March 2012) and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the
Accounting Standards Board.

The Municipality resolved to early adopt the following GRAP standards which have been
issued but are not effective yet.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied
except where an exemption has been granted, are disclosed below.

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is
permitted or required by a Standard of GRAP.

The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used to present the previous year's
financial statements, unless explicitly stated otherwise. The details of any changes in
accounling policies are explained in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

In terms of Directive 7. “The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of
GRAP" issued by the Accounting Standards Board, the Municipality applied deemed cost to
Investment Property, Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible where the acquisition
cost of an asset could not be determined.

PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Amounts reflected in the financial statements are in South African Rand and at actual
values. Financial values are rounded to the nearest one Rand.

GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

These annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

1.4.

1.5

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is
amended, prior period comparative amounts are restated, unless a standard of GRAP does
not require the restatements of comparative information. The nature and reason for the
reclassification is disclosed. Where material accounting errors have been identified in the
current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is praclicable, and the prior year
comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy
in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the
prior year comparalives are restated accordingly.

AMENDED DISCLOSURE POLICY

Amendments to accounting policies are reported as and when deemed necessary based on
the relevance of any such amendment to the format and presentation of the annual financial
statements. The principal amendments to matters disclosed in the current financial
statements include errors.

1.6. MATERIALITY

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or
collectively, influence the decision or assessments of users made on the basis of the annual
financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or
misstatements judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the
information item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor. Materiality is
determined as 1% of total expenditure. This materiality is from management's perspective
and does not correlate with the auditor's materiality.

1.7. PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION

The presentation of budget information is prepared in accordance with GRAP 24 and based
on the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations format. The comparison of budget and
actual amounts are disclosed as separate additional financial statements, namely
Statements of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

Budget information is presented on the accrual basis and is based on the same period as the
actual amounts, i.e. 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. The budget information is therefore on a
comparable basis to the actual amounts.

The comparable information includes the following:

¢ the approved and final budget amounts;
* actual amounts and final budget amounts;

Explanations for differences between the approved and final budget are included in the
Statements of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts,

Explanations for material differences between the final budget amounts and actual amounts
are included the Statements of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts. Material
differences are being defined by Management as 10% of a specific line-item with a minimum
of R1 million.

The disclosure of comparative information in respect of the previous period is not required in
terms of GRAP 24,
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

1.8. STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following GRAP standards have been issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Municipality:

Standard

Description

Effective Date

GRAP 18
{Original — Feb 2011)

Segment Reporting

The objective of this Standard is to establish
principles for reporting financial information by
segments.

No significant impact is expected as information to a
large extent is already included in the appendices to
the financial statements which do not form part of the
audited financial statements.

1 April 2015

GRAP 20
(Original — June 2011)

Related Party Disclosure

The objective of this Standard is to ensure that an
Municipality's financial statements contains the
disclosures necessary to draw atlention to the
possibility that its financial position and surplus or
deficit may have been affected by the existence of
related parties and by transactions and outstanding
balances with such parties.

The Municipality resolved to formulate an accounting
policy based on the disclosure requirements as per
GRAP 20. The information is therefore included in
the financial statements.

Unknown

GRAP 32
{Original - Aug 2013)

Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the
accounting for service concession arrangements by
the grantor and a public sector entity.

No significant impact is expected as the
Municipality's current treatment is already in line with
the Standards treatment.

Unknown

GRAP 105
(Original — Nov 2010)

Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under
Common Control

The objective of this Standard is to establish
accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor
in a transfer of functions between entities under
common control.

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not participate in such business transactions
and no such transactions or events are expected in
the foreseeable future.

1 April 2015
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

GRAP 106
(Original — Nov 2010)

Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not
Under Common Control

The objective of this Standard is to establish
accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer of
functions between entities not under common
control,

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not participate in such business transactions
and no such transactions or events are expected in
the foreseeable future.

1 April 2015

GRAP 107
{Original — Nov 2010)

Mergers

The objective of this Standard is to establish
accounting principles for the combined entity and
combining entities in a merger.

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not participate in such business transactions
and no such transactions or events are expected in
the foreseeable future.

1 April 2015

GRAP 108
{Original - Sept 2013)

Statutory Receivables

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe
accounting requirements for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
statutory receivables.

The Municipality has revolved to adopt the principles
as set out in GRAP 108 to formulate its own
accounting policy.

Unknown

IGRAP 11

Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities (SPE)

The objective of this Interpretation of the Standard is
to prescribe under what circumstances an entity
should consolidate a SPE.

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not have any SPE's at this stage.

1 April 2015

IGRAP 12

Jointly Controlled Entities non-monetary
contributions

The objective of this Interprefation of the Standard is
to prescribe the treatment of profitloss when an
asset is sold or contributed by the venturer to a
Jointly Controlled Entity (JCE).

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not have any JCE's at this stage.

1 April 2015

These standards,

amendments and interpretations will not have a significant impact on
the Municipality once implemented.
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

1.9. LEASES

1.9.1

1.9.2

Municipallty as Lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
associated with ownership of an asset are transferred to the Municipality. Property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets (excluding licensing agreements for such items as
motion picture films, video recordings, plays, manuscripts, patents and copyrights)
subject to finance lease agreements are initially recognised at the lower of the asset's fair
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liabilities are initially recognised at the inception of the lease and are measured as the
sum of the minimum lease payments due in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for
the effect of interest. In discounting the lease payments, the Municipality uses the
interest rate that exactly discounts the lease payments and unguaranteed residual vaiue
1o the fair value of the asset plus any direct costs incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance with
the stated accounting policies applicable to property, plant and equipment, investment
property or intangibles assets. The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments,
which are allocated between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the
effective interest rate method. Lease finance costs are expensed when incurred. The
accounting policies relating to de-recognition of financial instruments are applied to lease
payables.

Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition.
Operating lease rentals are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. The difference between the straight-lined expenses and actual payments
made will give rise to a liability. The Municipality recognises the aggregate benefit of
incentives as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term, on a straight-line basis
unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the lessee's
benefit from the use of the leased asset.

Municipality as Lessor

Under a finance lease, the Municipality recognises the lease payments to be received in
terms of a lease agreement as an asset (receivable). The receivable is calculated as the
sum of all the minimum lease payments to be received, plus any unguaranteed residual
accruing to the Municipality, discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. The
receivable is reduced by the capital portion of the lease instalments received, with the
interest portion being recognised as interest revenue on a time proportionate basis. The
accounting policies relating to de-recognition and impairment of financial instruments are
applied to lease receivables.

Operaling leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition.
Operating lease revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. The difference between the straight-lined revenue and actual payments
received will give rise to an asset. The Municipality recognises the aggregate cost of
incentives as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term, on a straight-line basis
unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern over which the
beneiit of the leased asset is diminished.
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1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Conditional government grants are subject to specific conditions. If these specific
conditions are not met, the monies received are repayable.

Unspent conditional grants are financial liabilities that are separately reflected on the
Slatement of Financial Position. They represent unspent government grants, subsidies
and contributions from the public.

This liability always has to be cash-backed. The following provisions are set for the
creation and utilisation of this creditor:

Unspent conditional grants are recognised as a liability when the grant is received.
When grant conditions are met an amount equal to the conditions met are
transferred to revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

* The cash which backs up the creditor is invested as individual investment or part of
the general investments of the Municipality until it is utilised.

» Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If
it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the creditor. If it is the
Municipality’s interest, it is recognised as interest eamed in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

UNPAID CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Unpaid conditional grants are assels in terms of the Framework that are separately
reflected on the Statement of Financial Position. The asset is recognised when the
Municipality has an enforceable right to receive the grant or if it is virtually certain that it
will be received based on that grant conditions have been met. They represent unpaid
government grants, subsidies and contributions from the public.

The following provisions are set for the creation and utilisation of grant receivables:

» Unpaid conditional grants are recognised as an asset when the grant is receivable.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Municipality has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying
economic benefits or service potential will be required to seltle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the provision can be made. Provisions are reviewed at reporting date
and adjusted to refiect the current best estimate of future outflows of resources. Where
the effect is material, non-current provisions are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects the market's current assessment of the time value of money,
adjusted for risks specific to the liability.

The Municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset. A
contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability of an oulflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote. A contingent asset is
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in
the amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.
Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a
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provision. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The present
obligation under an onerous contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only when the following criteria over and
above the recognition criteria of a provision have been met:

(a) The Municipality has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least:

the business or part of a business concerned;

the principal locations affected;

the location, function and approximate number of employees who will be
compensated for terminating their services;

the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

when the plan wiil be implemented.

(b) The Municipality has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry
out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it.

If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is de-recognised.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the
Municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution
plans.

Post-Retirement Medical Obligations

The Municipality provides post-retirement medical benefits by subsidizing the medical aid
contributions of certain retired staff according to the rules of the medical aid funds.
Council pays 60% as contribution and the remaining 40% are paid by the members. For
retired members, Council pays 70% as contribution and the remaining 30% are paid by
the members. The entitiement to these benefits is usually conditional on the employee
remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimurn service
period. The present value of the defined benefit liability is actuarially determined in
accordance with GRAP 25 — Employee benefits (using a discount rate applicable to high
quality government bonds). The plan is unfunded.

These contributions are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance when
employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution. The liability was
calculated by means of the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. The liability in
respect of current pensioners is regarded as fully accrued, and is therefore not split
between a past (or accrued) and future in-service element. The liability is recognised at
the fair value of the obligation. Payments made by the Municipality are set-off against the
liability, including notional interest, resulting from the valuation by the actuaries and are
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1.134

1.13.5

1.13.6

charged against the Statement of Financial Performance as employee benefits upon
valuation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and changes in
acluarial assumptions, is charged or credited to the Statement of Financial Performance
in the period that it occurs. These obligations are valued periodically by independent
qualified actuaries.

Long Service Awards

Long service awards are provided to employees who achieve certain pre-determined
milestones of service within the Municipality. The Municipality's obligation under these
plans is valued by independent qualified actuaries annually and the corresponding liability
is raised. Payments are set-off against the liability, including notional interest, resulting
from the valuation by the actuaries and are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance as employee benefits upon valuation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and changes in
acluarial assumptions, is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the
period that it occurs. These obligations are valued periodically, unless circumstances
change significantly in which case it is done annually, by independent qualified actuaries.

Staff Leave accrued

Liabilities for annua! leave are recognised as they accrue to employees. The liability is
based on the total amount of leave days due to employees at year-end and also on the
total remuneration package of the employee.

Accumulating leave is carmried forward and can be used in future periods if the current
period's entitlement is not used in full. All unused leave will be paid out to the specific
employee at the end of that employee’s employment term. Unused leave is being capped
at 48 days.

Accumulated leave is vesting.

Staff Bonuses Accrued

Liabilities for staff bonuses are recognised as they accrue to employees. The liability at
year end is based on bonus accrued at year-end for each employee.

Provision for Performance Bonuses

A provision, in respect of the liability relating to the anticipated costs of performance
bonuses payable to Section 57 employees, is recognised as it accrue to Section 57
employees. Municipal entities' performance bonus provisions are based on the
employment contract stipulations as well as previous performance bonus payment
trends.

Pension and retirement fund obligations

The Municipality provides retirement benefits for its employees and councillors.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the
Municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal
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1.15.1

or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year they become payable.

The defined benefit funds, which are administered on a provincial basis, are actuarially
valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are
recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on a
proportional basis to all participating municipalities. The contributions and lump sum
payments are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year they
become payable. Sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accounting
for a multi-employer plan. As a result, defined benefit plans have been accounted for as
if they were defined contribution plans.

Other Short-term Employee Benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the Municipality during a reporting period,
the Municipality recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

* as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the
amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the
Municipality recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund; and

s as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefits in the cost of an asset.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised {o the cost of that asset.

The amount of borrowing costs that the Municipality capitalises during a period does not
exceed the amount of borrowing costs it incurred during that peried. The Municipality
ceases the capitalisation of borrowing costs when substantially all the activities to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete. Borrowing costs incurred
other than on qualifying assets are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance when incurred.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Initial Recognition
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure

assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one
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year. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if,
and only if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with
the item will flow to the Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the item can be
measured reliably. Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as
assels on acquisition date and are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the Municipality. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the cost. The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

Where an asset is acquired by the Municipality for no or nomina! consideration {i.e. a
non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset
on the date acquired.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-
monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary
assets, the assels acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). It the acquired
item’s fair value is not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the
asset(s) given up.

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when
the Municipality expects to use them during more than one period. Similarly, if the major
spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land is not
depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Where the Municipality replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset
being replaced and capitalises the new component. Subsequent expenditure incurred on
an asset is capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the asset.

Depreciation and Impairment

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of an asset begins when it is
available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Components of assets that
are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are
depreciated separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation

28



EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

1.154

1.15.5

method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounied for on & prospective basis.

The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Asset Sub-grouping Useful Life (Yrs)
Land None Indefinite
Buildings None 20- 100
Infrasiructure Landfill Site 10 -100
Elsctricity 2-75
\Water 12 - 182
Roads 2-103
Security Measures §-50
Community Assets Cemetries & Fencinp 10 - 100
Halls 80 - 100
Library 90 - 100
Buildings Other ___20-100
Parks and Gardens 10- 50
Recreation 5-100
Leased Asset None 1-13
Heritage None Indefinite
Other Assets Computer Hardware 2-15
Plant and Equipment 1-20
Furniture and Other Office Equipment 2-35
Vehicles and Specialised Vehicles 2-55

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
The impairment recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess of
the carrying value over the recoverable amount.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been
recognised. A reversal of an impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

De-recognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed or
when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of
the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Land and buildings and Other Assets — application of deemed cost (Directive 7)

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as contained in
Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December 2008. The
Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be
determined. For Land and Buildings the fair value as determined by a valuator was used
in order to determine the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010. For Other Assels the
depreciation cost method was used to establish the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010,
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Initial Recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.
An asset meets the identifiability criterion in the definition of an intangible asset when it;

» s separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the Municipality and
sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with
a related contract, identifiable asset or liability, regardless of whether the
Municipality intends to do so; or

¢ arises from binding arrangements from contracts, regardless of whether those
rights are transferable or separable from the Municipality or from other rights and
cbligations.

The Municipality recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only
when it is probable that the expected fulure economic benefils or service potential that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the Municipality and the cost or fair value of the
asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria before they
are capitalised. Research expenditure is never capitalised, while development
expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that;

e the Municipality intends to complete the intangible asset for use or sale;

+ itis technically feasible to complete the intangible asset;

s the Municipality has the resources to complete the project;

» it is probable that the Municipality will receive future economic benefits or service
potential; and

e the Municipality can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

Intangible assets are initially recognised al cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary
assets, or a combination of monelary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is
initially measured at fair value {the cost). If the acquired item's fair value is not
determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairments losses. The cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the

useful life where that useful life is finite. Where the useful life is indefinite, the asset is not
amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test.
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Amortisation and Impairment

Amortisation is charged so as o write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets over its
estimated useful lives using the straight line method. Amortisation of an asset begins
when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by managemeni. Components of assels that are
significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are amortised
separately. The eslimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are
reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated
useful lives:

Intangible Assets Years
Computer Sofiware 2-10

Computer Software Licenses 2-10
De-recognition

intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed or when there are no
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

Application of deemed cost (Directive 7)

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as contained in
Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December 2009. The
Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be
determined. For Intangible Assets the depreciated replacement cost method was used
to establish the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Initial Recognition
Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and only when:

» it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are
associated with the investment property will flow to the Municipality, and

» the cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably.

Investment property includes property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both
land and buildings held under a finance lease) held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than held to meet service delivery objectives, the production or
supply of goods or services, or the sale of an asset in the ordinary course of operations.
Property with a currently undetermined use, is also classified as investment property.

At initial recognition, the Municipality measures investment property at cost including
transaction costs once it meets the definition of investment property. However, where an
investment property was acquired through a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where it
acquired the investment property for no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The cost of self-constructed investment property is measured at
cost.
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Transfers are made 1o or from investment property only when there is a change in use.
For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Municipality accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy slated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of
change in use.

Subsequent Measurement - Cost Mode/

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of investment property are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land is not
depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Depreciation and Impairment — Cost Mode!

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of an asset begins when it is
available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management, Components of assets that
are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are
depreciated separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Investment Property Years
Buildings 20-100
De-recognition

Investment property is derecognised when it is disposed or when there are no further
economic benefits expected from the use of the investment property. The gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of investment property is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

Application of deemed cost - Directive 7

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as contained in
Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December 2009. The
Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be
determined. The fair value as determined by a valuator was used in order to determine
the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010,

HERITAGE ASSETS

Initial Recognition

A heritage asset is defined as an asset that has a cultural, environmental, historical,

natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance and is held and preserved
indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.
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A heritage asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the
Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

A heritage asset that qualifies for recognition as an asset, is measured at its cost. Where
a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is deemed to be
its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

After recognition as an asset, heritage assels are carried at its cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation and Impairment
Heritage assets are not depreciated

Heritage assels are reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The impairment
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess of the carrying value
over the recoverable amount.

An impairment is reversed only to the exient that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been
recognised. A reversal of an impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

De-recognition

Heritage assets are derecognised when it is disposed or when there are no further
economic benefits expected from the use of the heritage asset. The gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of a heritage asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying value of the heritage asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Application of deemed cost - Directive 7

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as contained in
Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December 2009. The
Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be
determined. The fair value as determined by a valuator was used in order to determine
the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets held with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an

asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Municipality estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
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In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
Municipality considers the following indications:

(a) External sources of information

»  During the period, an asset's market value has declined significantly more
than would be expected as a result of the passage of time or normal use.

=  Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality have taken
place during the period, or will take place in the near future, in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the
Municipality operates or in the market to which an asset is dedicated.

*  Market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have
increased during the period, and those increases are likely to affect the
discount rate used in calculating an asset's value in use and decrease the
assel's recoverable amount materially.

(b) Internal sources of information
» Evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.

»  Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality have taken
place during the period, or are expected to take place in the near future, in
the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used or is expected to
be used. These changes include the asset becoming idle, plans to
discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset belongs, plans to
dispose of an asset before the previously expected date, and reassessing
the useful life of an asset as finite rather than indefinite.

»  Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the economic
performance of an asset is, or will be, worse than expected.

The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash generating
asset or from a non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset shall only occur

when there is clear evidence that such a re-designation is appropriate. A re-designation,
by itself, does not necessarily trigger an impairment test or a reversal of an impairment
loss. Instead, the indication for an impairment test or a reversal of an impairment loss
arises from, as a minimum, the indications listed above.

An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's
(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual
assel, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less its
residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as 1o whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the asset's or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

Non-cash-generating assets
Non-cash-generating assels are assets other than cash-generating assets.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Municipality estimates the asset's recoverable service amount.

In assessing whether there is any indication thal an asset may be impaired, the
Municipality considers the following indications:

(a) External sources of information

« Cessation, or near cessation, of the demand or need for services provided
by the asset.

» Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality
have taken place during the period or will take place in the near future, in the
technological, legal or government policy environment in which the
Municipality operates.

{b) Internal sources of information
e Evidence is available of physical damage of an asset.

»  Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality
have taken place during the period, or are expected to take place in the near
future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used or is
expected to be used. These changes include the asset becoming idle, plans
to discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset belongs, or
plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date.

s A decision to halt the construction of the asset before it is complete or in a
usable condition.

e Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the service
performance of an asset is, or will be, significantly worse than expected.
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An asset’s recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. If the recoverable service amount of an asset
is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable service amount. That reduction is an impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

The value in use of a non-cash-generaling asset is the present value of the assel's
remaining service potential. The present value of the remaining service potentia! of the
asset is determined using any one of the following approaches, depending on the nature
of the asset in question:

* depreciation replacement cost approach - the present value of the remaining
service potential of an asset is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of
the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset's gross
service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition.
An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication) of the existing
asset or through replacement of its gross service polential. The depreciated
replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the
asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of
such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

»  restoration cost approach - the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to
its pre-impaired level. Under this approach, the present value of the remaining
service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration
cost of the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential
of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is usually determined as the
depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower.

*  service unit approach - the present value of the remaining service potential of the
asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining service potential
of the asset before impairment, to conform with the reduced number of service
units expected from the asset in ils impaired state. As in the restoration cost
approach, the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset
before impairment is usually determined as the depreciated reproduction or
replacement cost of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard of GRAP. Any
impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease in
accordance with that Standard of GRAP.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the recoverable
service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable service amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increased carrying amount
of an asset atiributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no
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1.20.
1.20.1

1.20.2

1.21.

1.21.1

impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. Such a reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

INVENTORIES

Initial Recognition

Inventories comprise of current assets held for sale, consumption or distribution during
the ordinary course of business. Inventories are recognised as an asset if, and only if, it
is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item wiil
flow to the Municipality, and the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.
Inventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price,
plus non-recoverable taxes, transport costs and any other costs in bringing the
inventories to their current location and condition. Where inventory is manufactured,
constructed or produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads
used during the manufacturing process.

Where inventory is acquired by the Municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a
non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed o be equal to the fair value of the item on
the date acquired.

Subsequent Measurement

Inventories, consisting of consumable stores, raw materials, work-in-progress and
finished goods, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value unless they are to
be distributed at no or nominal charge, in which case they are measured at the lower of
cost and current replacement cost. Redundant and slow-moving inventories are
identified and written down. Differences arising on the valuation of inventory are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which they arose.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories arising from an increase in
net realisable value or current replacement cost is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs,

The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the
inventory was sold, distributed, written off or consumed, unless that cost qualifies for
capitalisation to the cost of another asset.

The basis of allocating cost to inventory items is the weighled average method.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments recognised on the Statement of Financial Position include
receivables (both from exchange transactions and non-exchange transactions), cash and
cash equivalents, annuity loans and payables (both form exchange and non-exchange
transactions) and non-current investments. The future utilization of Unspent Conditional
Grants is evaluated in order to determine whether it is treated as financial instruments.

Initial Recognition

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the Municipality becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument at fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset or financial liability not at fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. If finance charges in
respect of financial assets and financial liabilities are significantly different from similar
charges usuaily obtained in an open market transaction, adjusted for the specific risks of
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1.21.2

1.21.2.1

the municipality, such differences are immediately recognised in the period it occurs, and
the unamortised portion adjusted over the period of the loan transactions.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets are categorised according to their nature as either financial assets at fair
value, financial assets at amortised cost or financial assets at cost. Financial liabilities
are categorised as either at fair value or financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. The
subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on this
categorisation,

Receoivables

Receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

For amounts due from debtors carried at amortised cost, the Municipality first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually  significant. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days
overdue). If the Municipality determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics

and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the
asset. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no
realislic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Municipality. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate, if material. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.
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1.21.2.2

1.21.2.3

1.21.2.4

Payables and Annuity Loans

Financial liabilities consist of payables and annuity loans. They are categorised as
financial liabilities held at amortised cost, and are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using an effective interest rate, which
is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of
three months or less and are subject 1o an insignificant risk of change in value. For
the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and ‘cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, highly liquid deposits and net of bank overdrafts. The Municipality
categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial assets carried at amortised cost.

Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on bank
overdraft are expensed as incurred. Amounts owing in respect of bank overdrafis
are categorised as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.

Non-Current Investments

Investments which include investments in municipal entities and fixed deposits
invested in registered commercial banks, are stated at amortised cost.

Where investments have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the
impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period that the impairment is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The carrying amounts of such investments are reduced to recognise any decline,
other than a temporary decline, in the value of individual invesiments.

1.21.3 De-recognition of Financial instruments

1.21.3.1

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

» the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Municipality has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Municipality has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor

39



EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the old asset is derecognised and a new asset is recognised to the extent
of the Municipality's continuing involvement in the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Municipality could be required to repay.

When continuing involvement takes the form of a writlen and/or purchased option
(including a cash settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the
extent of the Municipality’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred
asset that the Municipality may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put
option (including a cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at
fair value, the extent of the Municipality’s continuing involvement is limited to the
lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

1.21.3.2 Financig! Liabilities

1.21.4

1.22

1.22.1

1.22.2

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the
original lizbility and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrving amounts is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assels and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

STATUTORY RECEIVABLES
Statutory receivables arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means and

require settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset. Statutory
receivables can arise from both exchange and non-exchange transactions.

Initial Recognition

Statutory receivables are recognised when the related revenue is recognised.
Measurement

The Municipality initially measures the statutory receivables at their transaction amount.
The Municipality measure statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost
method. Under the cost method, the initial measurement of the receivable is changed
subsequent to reflect any:

(a) interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable;

(b} impairment losses; and
(c) amounts derecognised.
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1.22.3

1.23.
1.23.1

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a
statutory receivable may be impaired. If there is an indication that a statutory receivable
may be impaired, the Municipality measures the impairment loss as the difference
between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the carrying
amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the
statutory receivable is reduced, through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. In estimating the future
cash flows, the Municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it
will receive in future. Consequently, where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the Municipality discounts the estimated future cash flows using a rate that
reflects the current risk free rate and any risks specific to the statutory receivable for
which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is revised if there
has been a change in the estimates used since the last impairment loss was recognised,
or to reflect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows. Any previously recognised
impairmant loss is adjusted by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of any
adjustment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.,

Derecognition

The Municipality derecognises a statutory receivable when:

(a) the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived;

(b) the Municipality transfers to another party substantially alt of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the receivable; or

(c) the Municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the receivable, has transferred contro! of the receivable to another party
and the other party has the practical ability to sell the receivable in its entirety to an
unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without
needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the
Municipality:

(i) derecognise the receivable; and
(ii) recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

REVENUE
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the Municipality
received revenue from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in
exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the
extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there
is no liability to repay the amount.

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the
resources that have been transferred, meet the criteria for recognition as an asset. A
corresponding liability is recognised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is
conditional. The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to
the grant are met. Grants without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue
when the asset is recognised.
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Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entillement to this revenue
arises. At the time of initial recognition the full amount of revenue is recognised. If the
Municipality does not enforce its obligation to collect the revenue, this would be
considered as a subsequent event. Collection charges are recognised when such
amounts are legally enforceable. Rebates and discounts are offset against the related
revenue, in terms of GRAP 1, as there is no intention of collecting this revenue.

Penalty interest on unpaid rates is recognised on a time proportionate basis as an
exchange transaction.

Revenue from public contributions and donations is recognised when all conditions
associated with the contribution have been met or where the contribution is o finance
property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment
qualifies for recognition and first becomes available for use by the Municipality. Where
public contributions have been received, but the Municipality has not met the related
conditions, it is recognised as an unspent public contribution (liability).

Revenue from third parties i.e. insurance payments for assets impaired, are recognised
when it can be measured reliably and is not being offset against the related expenses of
repairs or renewals of the impaired assets.

Contributed property, plant and equipment is recognised when such items of property,
plant and equipment qualifies for recognition and become available for use by the
Municipality.

All unclaimed deposits are initially recognised as a liability until 12 months expires, when
all unclaimed deposits into the Municipality's bank account will be treated as revenue.
Historical patterns have indicated that minimal unidentified deposits are reclaimed after a
period of twelve months. This assessment is performed annually at 30 June. Therefore
the substance of these transactions indicate that even though the prescription period for
unclaimed monies is legally three years, it is reasonable to recognised all unclaimed
monies older than twelve months as revenue. Although unclaimed deposits are
recognised as revenue after 12 months, the Municipality still keep record of these
unclaimed deposits for three years in the event that a party should submit a claim after 12
months, in which case it will be expensed.

Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
is based on legislated procedures, including those set out in the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) and is recognised when the recovery thereof from
the responsible councillors or officials is virtually certain.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, a Municipality recognises an asset, it
also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value
as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a
liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of
the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently
reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the
reduction in the liability will be recognised as revenue.
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1.23.2 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the Municipality
directly in return for services rendered or goods sold, the value of which approximates the
consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have
been satisfied:

*  The Municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods.

*  The Municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

s  The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

» Itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow 1o the Municipality.

» The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Al the time of initial recognition the full amount of revenue is recognised where the
Municipality has an enforceable legal obligation to collect, unless the individual
collectability is considered to be improbable. If the Municipality does not successfully
enforce its obligation to collect the revenue this would be considered a subsequent event.

Service charges relating to electricity is based on consumption and a basic charge as per
Council resolution. Meters are read on a monthly basis and are recognised as revenue
when invoiced. Where the Municipality was unable to take the actual month's reading of
certain consumers, a provisional estimate of consumption for that month will be created.
The provisional estimates of consumption are recognised as revenue when invoiced.
Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period in
which meters have been read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the
invoicing period.

Revenue from the sale of electricity prepaid meler cards is recognised at the point of
sale. It is eslimated that pre-paid electricity is consumed within 5 to 7 days after date of
purchase. The pre-paid electricity sold, but not consumed yet at year-end is disclosed as
under Payables from Exchange Transactions in the Statement of Financial Position.

Service charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on an annual basis in advance
by applying the approved tariff to each property that has improvements. Tariffs are
determined per category of property usage, and are levied monthly based on the
recorded number of refuse points per property.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease agreement.

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when

the relevant service is rendered by applying the relevant tariff. This includes the issuing
of licences and permits.
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Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substantially all the risks and
rewards in those goods are passed to the consumer.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when:
*  Substantially all the risks and rewards in those goods are passed to the consumer;
and

¢ The municipality seizes managerial involvement and control of the goods; and
»  The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and

|t is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality; and

»  The costs incurred or fo be incurred can be measured reliably.

Revenue arising out of situations where the Municipality acts as an agent on behalf of
another entity {the principal) is limited to the amount of any fee or commission payable to
the Municipality as compensation for execuling the agreed services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The amount of revenue arising on a transaction is usually determined by agreement
between the Municipality and the purchaser or user of the asset or service. It is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account the
amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Municipality.

In most cases, the consideration is in the form of cash or cash equivalents and the
amount of revenue is the amount of cash or cash equivalents received or receivable.

However, when the inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred, the fair value of the
consideration may be less than the nominal amount of cash received or receivable, When
the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction, the fair value of the
consideration is determined by discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate of
interest. The imputed rate of interest is the more clearly determinable of either:

*  The prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a similar credit rating;

» A rate of interest that discounts the nominal amount of the instrument to the current
cash sales price of the goods or services.

The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the consideration is
recognised as interest revenue.

When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or services which are of a
similar nature and value, the exchange is not regarded as a transaction that generates
revenue. When goods are sold or services are rendered in exchange for dissimilar goods
or services, the exchange is regarded as a transaction that generates revenue. The
revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, adjusted by the
amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair value of the goods or
services received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value
of the goods or services given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred.
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1.24. RELATED PARTIES

The Municipality resolved to formulate an accounting policy based on the disclosure
requirements as per GRAP 20 - “Related Party Disclosures”.

A related party is a person or an entity:

»  with the ability to control or jointly control the other party,
e or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa,
e or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

The following are regarded as related parties of the Municipality:

{a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Municipality if
that person:

» has control or joint control over the Municipality.

» has significant influence over the Municipalities. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
Municipality.

» is a member of the management of the Municipality or its controlling entity.

(b) An entity is related to the Municipality if any of the following conditions apply:
o the entity is a member of the same Municipality (which means that each
controlling entity, controlled entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the
others).

» one entily is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or an associate
or joint venture of a member of an Municipality of which the other entity is a
member).

» both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

» one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
assaciate of the third entity.

» the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Municipality or an entity related to the Municipality. If the reporting
entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity.

» the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

« a person identified in (a) has significant influence over that entily or is a
member of the management of that enlity (or its controlling entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected 1o influence, or be influenced by that person in their dealings with the
Municipality. A person is considered to be a close member of the family of another
person if they:

{a) are married or live together in a relationship similar to a marriage; or

(b) are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or legal consanguinity or
affinity.
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1.25.

1.26,

Management (formerly known as “Key Management") includes all persons having the
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Municipality, including:

(a) all members of the governing body of the Municipality;

(b} a member of the governing body of an Municipality who has the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Municipality;

(c) any key advisors of a member, or sub-committees, of the governing body who has
the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Municipality; and

(d) the senior management team of the Municipality, including the chief executive
officer or permanent head of the Municipality, unless already included in (a).

Management personnel include:

(a) Al directors or members of the goveming body of the Municipality, being the
Executive Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Speaker and members of the Mayoral Committee.

(b) Other persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the reporting Municipality being the Municipal Manager,
Chief Financial Officer an all other managers reporling directly to the Municipal
Manager or as designated by the Municipal Manager.

Remuneration of management includes remuneration derived for services provided to the
Municipality in their capacity as members of the management team or employees.
Benefits derived directly or indirectly from the Municipality for services in any capacity
other than as an employee or a member of management do not meet the definition of
remuneration. Remuneration of management excludes any consideration provided solely
as a reimbursement for expenditure incurred by those persons for the benefit of the
Municipality.

The Municipality operates in an economic environment currently dominated by entities
direclly or indirectly owned by the South African government. As a result of the
Constitutional independence of all three spheres of government in South Africa, only
parties within the same sphere of government will be considered to be related parties.
Only transactions with such parties which are not at arm's length and not on normal
commercial terms are disclosed.

UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is
not in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of
government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in a form of a grant that is not
permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003).
Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense (measured at actual cost
incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Iregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003}, the Municipal Systems Act (Act No. 32 of 2000),
the Public Office Bearers Act, and (Act. No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the
Municipality’s Supply Chain Management Policy. Irregular expenditure excludes
unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure
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1.27.

1.28,

1.29,

1.29.1

1.29.2

{measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could have
been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Fruilless and wasteful expenditure is
accounted for as expenditure (measured at aclual cost incurred) in the Statement of
Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Municipality. A contingent
liability could also be a present obligation that arises from past events, but is not
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. A Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or
other unexpected events that are not whoily within the control of the entity and give rise
to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits or service potential to the entity.

The Municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset. A
contingent Kability is disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote. A contingent asset is
disclosed where the inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring contingent
liabilities and assets.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Municipality's accounting policy, management has made
the following significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements:

Post-retirement medical obligations and Long service awards

The cost of post-retirement medical obligations and long service awards are determined
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, expecled rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Major assumptions used are disclosed in note 3 of the
annual financial statements. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates
are subject to significant uncertainty.

Impairment of Receivables
The calculation in respect of the impairment of debtors is based on an assessment of the
extent to which debtors have defaulted on payments already due, and an assessment of

their ability to make payments based on their creditworthiness. This was performed per
service-identifiable categories across all classes of debtors.
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1.29.3

1.29.4

Property, Plant and Equipment

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on management's
estimation. Infrastructure's useful lives are based on technical estimates of the practical
useful lives for the different infrastructure types, given engineering technical knowledge of
the infrastructure types and service requirements. For other assets and buildings
management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life
expectation, where appropriate. The estimation of residual values of assets is also based
on management's judgement whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of their
useful lives, and in what condition they will be at that time.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment.

*  The useful life of movable assets was determined using the age of similar assets
available for sale in the active market. Discussions with people within the specific
industry were also held to determine useful lives.

*  Local Government Industry Guides was used to assist with the deemed cost and
useful life of infrastructure assets.

e  The Municipality referred to buildings in other municipal areas to determine the
useful life of buildings. The Municipality also consulted with engineers to support
the useful life of buildings, with specific reference to the structural design of
buildings.

For deemed cost applied to other assets as per adoption of Directive 7, management
used the depreciation cost method which was based on assumptions about the remaining
duration of the assets,

The cost for depreciated replacement cost was determined by using either one of the
following:

cost of items with a similar nature currently in the Municipality’s asset register;
cost of items with a similar nature in other municipalities’ asset registers, given that
the other municipality has the same geographical setting as the Municipality and
that the other municipality's asset register is considered to be accurate;

s  cost as supplied by suppliers.

For deemed cost applied to land and buildings as per adoption of Directive 7,
management made use of an independent valuator. The valuator's valuation was based
on assumptions about the market's buying and selling trends and the remaining duration
of the assets.

Intangible Assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are based on management's estimation.
Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life
expectation, where appropriate.

Reference was made to intangibles used within the Municipality and other municipalities
to determine the useful life of the assets.
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1.29.5

1.29.6

1.29.7

1.29.8

For deemed cost applied to intangible assels as per adoption of Directive 7, management
used the deprecialion cost method which was based on assumptions about the remaining
duration of the asset.

Provisions and Contingent Liabllities

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and
when measuring contingent liabilities. Provisions are discounted where the time value
effect is material.

Investment Property

The useful lives of investment property are based on management's estimation.
Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life
expectation, where appropriate. The estimation of residual values of assets is also based
on management’s judgement whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of their
economic lives, and in what condition they will be at that time.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful lives
and valuation of investment property:

» The Municipality referred to buildings in other municipal areas to determine the
useful life of buildings.

«  The Municipality also consulted with professional engineers and qualified valuators
to support the useful life of buildings.

For deemed cost applied to Investment Property as per adoption of Directive 7,
management made use of on independent valuator. The valuator's valuation was based
on assumptions about the market's buying and selling trends and the remaining duration
of the assets.

Revenue Recognition

Accounting Policy 1.23.1 on Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions and Accounting
Policy 1.23.2 on Revenue from Exchange Transactions describes the conditions under
which revenue will be recognised by management of the Municipality.

In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the
recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions and
GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions.). Specifically, whether the
Municipality, when goods are sold, had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods and when services are rendered, whether the service
has been performed. The management of the Municipality is satisfied that recognition of
the revenue in the current year is appropriate.

Provision for Landfill Sites

The provision for rehabilitation of the landfill site is recognised as and when the
environmental liability arises. The provision is calculated by a qualified environmental
engineer. The provision represents the net present value at the reporting date of the
expected future cash flows to rehabilitate the landfill site. To the extent that the
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1.29.9

obligations relate 1o an asset, it is capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Any
subsequent changes 10 an obligation that did not relate to the initial related asset are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding provisions:

* Professional engineers were utilised to determine the cost of rehabilitation of
landfill sites as well as the remaining useful life of each specific landfill site.

* Interest rates (investment rate) linked to prime was used to calculate the efiect of
time value of money.

Staff leave accrued

Staff leave is accrued to employees according to collective agreements. Provision is
made for the full cost of accrued leave at reporting date. This provision will be realised as
employees take leave or when employment is terminated. Unused leave is being capped
at 48 days.

1.29.10 Provision for Performance bonuses

The provision for performance bonuses represents the best estimate of the obligation at
year end and is based on historic patterns of payment of performance bonuses.
Performance bonuses are subject to an evaluation by Council.

1.29.11 Pre-paid electricity estimation

Pre-paid electricity is only recognised as income once the electricity is consumed. The
pre-paid electricity balance (included under payables) represents the best estimate of
electricity sold at year-end that is still unused. The average pre-paid electricity sold per
day during the year under review is used and the estimate is calculated using 5 days’
worth of unused electricity.

1.29.12 Componentisation of Infrastructure assets

All infrastructure assets are unbundled into their significant components in order to
depreciate all major components over the expected useful lives. The cost of each
component is estimated based on the current market price of each component,
depreciated for age and condition and recalculated 1o cost at the acquisition date if known
or to the date of initially adopting the standards of GRAP.,

1.29.13 Impairments of assets — Capitalised Restoration Cost

Impairment charges relating to capitalised restoration costs are linked to fluctuations in
the discount rate used to unwind the provision relating to this asset. This discount rate is
linked to the prime interest rate and any movement in this rate will result in the
impairment/reversal of impairment of the asset,
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1.30,

1.21.

1.32,

1.33.

TAXES - VALUE ADDED TAX

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amounts of value added tax.
The net amount of Value Added Tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial
Position.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments disclosed in the annual financial statements represenis the
contraciual balance committed to capital projects on reporting date that will be incurred in
the period subsequent to the specific reporting date.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the reporting date and the date when the annual financial statements are
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

e those that provide evidence of conditions that existed al the reporting date
(adjusting events after the reporting date); and

» those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-
adjusting events after the reporting date).

If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material, the Municipality discloses the
nature and an estimale of the financial effect.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Discontinued operation is a component of the Municipality that has been disposed of and:

. represents a distinguishable activity, group of activities or geographical area of
operations;

. is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a distinguishable activity, group
of activities or geographical area of operations; or

. is a controlled entity acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

To qualify as a discontinued operation, the disposal must occur within a single co-
ordinated plan. Once the disposal plan has been approved, the Municipality reclassifies
all related assets and liabilities associated with the discontinued operations as a separate
line-item in the Statement of Financial Position. The Municipality subsequently measures
and account for assets and liabilities associated with discontinued operations in
accordance with the respective Standards of GRAP applicable to that asset or fiability.

All revenue and expenditure associated with the discontinued operations is disclosed as

a one line-item in the Statement of Financial Performance. Detail of the revenue and
expenditure associated with the discontinued operations is disclosed in the notes.
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LONG-TERM LLABILITIES

Capitalised Lease Liabllity - At amortised cost
Hire Purchasa

Less: Current Portion transfered to Current Llabilities

Captialised Lease Llabiity - At amortised cost
Hire Purchase

Total Long-term Liabilities « At amortised cost

The obligations under finance leases are schedulad below,

Amounts payable under finance leases:
Payable within one year

Payable within two to five years
Payable after fve years

Less: Future finance cbiigations
Fresent value of lease obligations

The capitalised Irase lability consist out of the following contracts:

Qescription Eifective
of Interest
Supplier leased ftem frit4

NRG Office Solutions (PtylLid 3 x Kyocera FS 3640 32.04%
NRG Office Solutions (Pty)Lid 2 x Taskalfa 3500i 32.04%
MNRG Office Sclutions (Piy)Lid 1 x Taskalta 65501 32.04%
NRG Office Sclutions (Pty)Lid 1 x Taskala BO0DI 32.04%
Aloe Qffice and Business Sotubions 1 x Xerox D95A CP PRO 17.20%
Alos Office and Business Solutions 2 x Xerox 7870 CPSF 17.72%
Alos Office and Business Solutions 5 x Xerox 5325 CPSF 17.38%
Aloe Offics and Business Solutions B x Xerox 8505 CPSF 17.38%
The ter he lease 8 withh NRG Office Solutions {Pty) Ltd
The obligations undar hire p a3 are sch below:
A b ble under hire purch
Payabla within one year
Fayable within two to fiva years
Payable alter five years
Less: Futwe financa obligations
Prasant value of hire purchase obligations
Leases are securad by propeny, ptant and equipment - Note
The capitalised hir purchase lablity consist cut of the following contracts:

Description Effective

o interest
Supplier loased tem fate

Standard Bank TOYOTA COROLLA B8.25%
Stanctard Bank NISSAN QASHOAI 8.25%

The Toyota Comolla is no longer in use.
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0%
0%

2015 2014

R R

664 370 203916

148 012 342118

810 323 548 033

263 459 311 209

180 510 203 916
72 850 107 383

546 924 234 735

Minimun
leates payments

292 251 232 895
561 785 -
B854 048 232 835
(189 676} {28 979)
684 370 203 918
_LesseTern _ Manrty Date
3 Years 200032015
3 Years 20/03/2015
3 Years 200372015
3 Years 20032015
3 Years 28M05/2018
3 Years 11/08/2018
3 Years 26/05/2018
3 Years 26/0572016
Minimum
hire purchase payments
83 445 133825
76491 258 499
159 936 380 324
{13 824) {48 206}
148 012 342 113
Leasa Tarm Matutity Date
5 Years 150572017
5 Years 15/05:2017
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Fost Relirsment Benefits - Refer to Note 3.1
Long Service Awards - Refer to Note 2.2
Tetal Non-current Employes Banefit Liabilites
Less: Tr d to DI inusd Op
Balance 30 June

~MNote 51.2

Eost Betirement Reneflits

Batance 1 July

Contribution for the year

Interesi Cost

Expenditure for the year

Actuaral Loss/{Gain)

Total post retiremant benefits 30 June
Lass; Transler of Cument Portion - Note 5
Balance 20 June

Less: Transh ta Di: Inued O tions - Note 50.2
Balance 20 Jure

Loga Service Awards

Batance 1 July

Contribution for the year

interest Cost

Expenditure for the year

Actuarial Loss/{Gain)

Total long sarvice 30 June

Less:  Transfer of Cument Portion - Note 5

Balance 20 June
Less: Transi to DI inued Operations - Note 50.2
Balance 30 June

TOTAL NON-CURRENT EMPOLYEE BENEFITS

Balance 1 July
Contribution for the year
Interest cost
Expenditure for the year
Actuarial Loss/(Gain)

Totsl amployes benefits 30 June
Less; Transter of Current Porlion - Note §

Balance 3¢ Juna
Less: Transfarred to Di inued Oparations - Note 50.2
Balance 30 Juna

Post Retiramani Banafits

The Post Retirement Benefit Plan is a defined contribution plan, of which the members are made up as foillows:

In-service (employee) members
In-sarvice (ampioyee) non-members
Continuation members (& 0. Retirees, widows. ophans)

Tots! Members

The Hateity in respect of past servics has baen estimated Lo be os follows

In-service members
In-3ervice non-members
Continuation members

Total Linbliity

The Esbility In respect of periods commencing pricr to the comparative year has been estimaled as

foliows.:

In-service members
In-3ervice non-members
Continuation members

Total Linbility

Experience adjusiments were caiculated as follows:

Liabiities: (Gain) / loss
Assets: Gain / {loss)
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2015
Rm

-0 814
0.000

R R
5476 374 5220472
1445055 1237 178
6921429 6457 647
L2 812) S
5 836 817 6457 647
R R
5220472 3671582
698 798 429 760
478 789 350 081
- {14 4p5)
(805 337} 783 454
5483702 5220 472
{17 326} -
5476374 5220 472
{1 147 585 .
3 328 789 5220 472
1453534 1169 744
200 393 241094
104 381 78 853
M5 771 143 996)
{21 17) 7830
1741 418 1 453 53
(266 2367 {216 358)
1 445055 1237175
237 027 :
1‘!!'!1!'!1' 1237175
6674 006 4841328
980 191 870854
584 150 420934
115 773) (58 401}
{026 454) 701 283
7 205 420 6 674 006
{283 £91) {218 259}
8921420 €457 647
{1 384 812 .
I
5536817 & 457 647
BS [}
118 12
1 .
208 189
4192 118 45338268
1000 782 €06 646
291 804 -
5491702 5220 472
R R
4533 826 3423 100
886 646 248 482
5220 472 3671542
2014 2013
Rm Rm
0.202 0.546



EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
The municipalty makes monthly contributions for heatth care

Bonitas;

Hosmed

LA Haalth

Samwumed; and

Kay haatth.

Key actuarial assumptions used:

i} Rata of Interest
Discount rate

Health Care Cost inflation Rate
Net Effective Discount Rate

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The discount rate used Is & composite &f sl govemment bongs and is calculated using a technique I known as

“bootstrapping”

H)  Mortality rates

The PA 80 ultimate table, rated down by 1 year of age was used by the actuaries.

ill} Normal retiremant age

It has baen assumed thal in-service membars will retire at aga 60 for lemales and 65 for males, which then implicitly allows

for axpected rates of early and ilkheatth retirement.

The gnised In tha Stat t of Fi

Present valua of fund obligations
Total Lisbillty

The fund is entirely unfunded.

lal Position are as follows:

The municipality has slected to recognise the full increase in this defined contribution liability immediately as par GRAP 25

Reconciliation of prasent value of fund obligation:

Present value of fund obligation at the beginning of the year
Tolal expenses.

Cumeni sarvice cost
Interest Cost
Blenafits Paid

Actuanal (gainsylosses
Present value of fund obligation at the end of the year
Less:  Transler of Curment Portion - Neta 5

Balance 30 June
Less: Transferrad to Discontinuad Operations - Note 50.2
Balance 20 June

Sensiiivity Analysis on the Accrued Liability

Assumption
Central Assumptions

are as follows.

The stfect of in tha pi

Assumption

Haeatth care inflation
Heatth care inflation
Discount Rate

Discount Rate
Posi-retiremant mortality
Average retiterent age
Continuation of ip at

Assumption

Cantral Assumption

Heatth care inflation

Heatth care inflation

Discount Rate

Discount Rate

Paos!-retirement mortality

Average retirement age

Continuation of membership at retirement

Changs

Change

-1%
1%
-1%

«1 year
-1 year
-10%

1%
-1%
1%
1%

-1 year
«1 year
-16%
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2015 2014
ing medical aid sch
% N
B.22% 2.19%
8.32% 8.28%
0.84% 0.84%
5493 702 5220 472
5 491 702 5320472
5220412 3671 582
1178 5687 785 438
698 198 428 760
478 769 350 081
- {14 405)
{805 337 783 454
5493 702 5220 472
{17 328} -
5476 374 5220 472
{1147 585 .
—
4 320 789 5220 472
In-service
" P
liabllity membars Habhity Total lability
(Rm) {Rm) [Rm) % change
5202 0.262 5494
In-gervice
M Continuatl
labllity members llablity Total lisbllity
(Rm} (Rm) [Rm) % change
an7 0.323 8.640 21%
4.323 0.265 4.588 -16%
4.338 0.265 4,601 =16%
6.318 0.323 6.641 21%
5.396 0,303 5.699 4%
57681 0.282 8.053 10%
4257 0.2692 4.549 -17%
Current-sarvice
Cost Interest Cost Total
iR} {R} {R) % change
588 300 479 800 1178600
858 500 577 200 1435700 22%
574 500 402 400 476 800 “17T%
581 700 447 500 1029200 =13%
B850 B0O 514 500 1 365 300 16%
724 800 497 800 1222 600 4%
714 500 532400 1244 800 6%
544 500 404 300 648 800 =18%
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Long Servics Bonuses

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The Long Service Bonus plans are dafined benefit plans,

As at ysar end, the foll of emph were eligible for Long Service Bonuses 204 189
Key actuarial assumptions used: % %
i} Rate of Intarest
Discount rate 7.80% 7.75%
Genaral Salary Inflation {long-tamm) 6.95% £.98%
Net Effective Discount Rata applied to salars-related Long Service Bonuses 0.79% 0.70%
Tha discouni rate usad is 8 composite of all govemnmeni bonds and is calculated using a technique is known as
“bootstrapping”
The gnl of Fii ial Position ars as follows:
Present value of fund obligations 1711418 1453 54
Nat lability 1 T11 418 1453 534
The liability In respect of pariods ing prier to tha comp v& yeat has been estimated as
R R
Total Liabllity 1453 534 1169 744
=
Recenciliation of presant value of fund obligaton: R R
Present velue of fund obligation at the beginning o the year 1453534 1168 744
Total expanses 279 001 275 951
Cumen service cost 260 393 241054
Interasi Cost 104 381 78 653
Benefits Pald [115773) (43 898)
Actugtial (gains)losses {21117} 7 6839
Present value of fund obligation at the end of tha year 1711418 1453834
Less: Transter of Cument Portion - Note 5 (266 363} {216 359}
Balance 30 Juns 1445 055 1237175
Less: Transtarred 1o Discontlnued Operations - Note 50.2 237 027 .
Balancs 30 Jurie 1208 028 1237 175
A
Sensltivity Analysls on the Unfunded Accrued Liabllity
Liabllity
Assumption Changa R) % changa
Caniral assumptions 1.7
General salary inflation 1.00% 1.807 6%
General salary inflation -1.00% 1.624 5%
Discount Rata 1.00% 1.61% 5%
Discount Rate 1.00% 1.814 6%
Average relirement age -2y 1.620 -5%
Average reliramant age *2yr3 1801 5%
Withdrawal rates -50.00% 2048 0%

Page 3%
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS {CONTINUED)

Retiremant funds

2018 2014
CAPE JOINT PENSION FUND Contributng
membecy |
The contribution rate payabie Is 8% by membars and 18% by Council. L]
R R
G 13 pald t d I the Sta of Fi tat Perf: 2 530 351 1618 1688
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION FUNDS
Council confribute to the South African Lecal Authorities Pension Fund, Municipal Councillors Pension Fund and SAMWLY
National Provident Fund which are dafined contribution funds. The retiemant benefil fund |s subject to the Pension Fund Act.
1856, with pansion being calculated on the pensionable remunaration paid. Current contributions by Councl are charged against
sxpanditurs on the basis of cunent service costs.
Last
scumia | Constng
Yaluption
2013/06730 37
2009/06730 33
2008/06730 85
The last actuarial valuation performad for the year ended 30 June 2014 revealad thal the fund is in & sound financlal position with
Note: The results of the actuarial valuations dated 30 June 2008 for SAMWU National Provident Fund and 30 June 2009 for
Municipal Counciliors Pension Funds ane not ye! available,
Contributions paid d in the Sta of Fi ial Pard
Sala Pension Fund 730 664 928313
Municipal Councliiors Pension Fund 761 782 7136780
SAMWYU National Provident Fund 1185 255 1176815
2 606 901 2 841 689

Fage 56



24

EMALAILENI MUNRSIFALN T

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Provision for Ex-Gratla payment- CFO

Balance at beginning of year 142 180 128400
Contributicn to cumrant portion 15382 13 760
Balance al snd of year 157 542 142 180
—— L
In terms of the section 57 Employment contract of the Chief Financial Officer. an amount of 15% of his total package must ba
paid to him ot the Uime of tarmination of ampioyment
20158 2014
NOR-CURRENT PROVISIONS R R
Provision for Rehabilitation of Landfilk-sites 0 2118287
Teotal Non-current Provisions ] 2119 287
Tha Munidpalrty operata on three landfil sites. The In yeer actual operational costs ls d in the of fi )
The is calcuiated in order to finance tha rehabilitation cost of each cell when it reaches 100% capacity.
The expaciad cash flow outflow; within one year relates to all three siies of the case of aHi three sites there is alady a
shorcoming In the day to day cperations of the sites thesa cost is representad by the shom-term portien of the non-cumen]
provision
Tha landfill sites in operation are Lady Frere; Dordrecht and Indwe,
Lancfill Sites R R
Balance 1 July 2 767 937 2824251
Increase In Estimate B601 703 2013
Unwinding of discounted intarest 144 994 122 555
Total provision 38 Juna 11514 835 2767937
Less; Transfer of Curent Portion to Current Provisions - Note {11 514 835) {648 550}
Batance 30 June 0 2119 287
The pality has an cbiig 1o rehabiitate landfill sites at the end of the expeacted useful He Total cost of rehabilitation of
the cument cell In operation and esd d cate of isslon of the cell are as follows:
Rehabllitstion ~ Rehapliitation
£stimated costofcellin costofcellin
Location decommission date use use
R R
Lady Frere landfili site Is located approximately 2.0km wast off Indwes road R 394 205 6 750 B4 1211 112
Dordrecht lancfit site is lIocated off R56 about B00m atter the Dordrecht iown to O 1l Roule 2015 1898 739 808 176
Indwe landflll site is localed east off RS0 approximately 260m bafore the iawn of Indwe 2015 864 912 £48 650
11 514 835 2787 837
Materiat Assumptions used
Asea of landfill site consumed 2013 2014 b
Lady Frere landfill sis is located approximalely 2.0km west off Indwe road R 394 J38.15% 4045% 100.00%
Dordrecht landfill site is located off R58 about 800m after the Dordrecht town lo Queensiown Routa 73.79% 74.83% 100.00%
Ingwe landfil site is located sast off RSB approsimately 260m bafors the town of Indwe B5.41% 89.78% 100.00%
Discounl Rate used 4.53% 4n% 5.24%

The discount rate used tha calculate the present vaiue of the rehabilitation costs at each reporting period is based on a calculated
tisk iren rate a3 determined by the municipality. This rata is in line with 8 compatitive rate the icipality can obtain
{from an A grade financtal institulion. This rate used is also within the Inflation targel range of the South African Reserva Bank of
between 3% io 6%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Curreni Portion of Post Retirement Benefits - Nota 3

Curreni Portion of Long-Servica Provisions - Note 3

Staff leave accrued

Provision for Parf B

Staff Bonuses accruad

Provision for Compensstion for injuries on duty contribution
Totsl Current Employes Banefits

Less: Transferred to Discontinued Operations - Nots 50.2
Total Current Employsa Banefits Continued

The In ployes benafits is reconclied as fcllows:

Staff leave accrued

Balanca at baginning of year

Contributlon to cument portion

Expenditure incumed

Balance at and of year

Lass: Transferred to Discontinusd Oparations - Note 50.2
Balancs 30 June

Statl leave accrued to employees according to collactive agreement. An actrual is made for the full cost of accrued leave al
repeiting date. The accrual will be realised as employees take leave. There is a possibility of reimbursement based on rends In
tha past.

Provision for Performance Bonuses
Balance ot beginning of year
Contribution 1o curent portion
Expanditurs Incurred

Batance at and of year

Performance bonuses are being paid to Municipal Manager and Directors after an avaluation of performance by the council.

Safl Bonuses sccived

Batance al beginning of year

Contribution to cument portion

Expenditure incumed

Balance at and of year

Less: Transferred to Discontinued Operations - Note 50.2
Balance 30 June

Bonuses are being pald to all p ! icipal staff, excluding section 57 Managers. Tha balance at year end
reprasent 1o portion of the bonus thal have alraady vested lnr the curren) salary cycle.

wries op duty contribution
Balance at beginning of yaar
Contribution to currant portion
Expenditure incurred

Balanca at end of ysar

The balance on the numpensahon for Injuries on duty contribulion represents the cument liability of the municipality that has not
yet been pakl over to the rel The the best the outflow of resources. The timing and
amount of the outflow Is dependant on whan an assessment is recaived from the relevant authorties,

PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade Payables
Third party paylbte.-. (Paymll)

Rewmuns and Guamnlnes
SECTION 57 EX GRATIA;
Sundry Deposits

Sundry Creditors

Total Trade Payables

Payables are being recognised net of any discounts.

Payables are being paid within 30 days as prescribed by the MFMA. This credit period granled is considared 1o be consistent with
Ihe lerms used in the public sector. through blishad practices and legistation Discounting of rade and other payables on
Initial recognition is nol deemed nacessary

The carrying velye of trade and other payables approximates its fair value. Al payables are unsecured. Sunory deposis mciude
hall, tender and cther general deposits. The Municipality did nct default on any of thair payables
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17328 5
266 382 216250
5156 202 4126 161
720018 511610
1080 589 836 324
737 054 338 589
7978 524 8129 053
{681 252) .
7 087 272 8 128 053
——

4126 181 3166256
1443856 1834678
{413 725) (874 BT1)
5158 282 4126 181
£72 181 .
4 484 110 4128 161
511610 2485821
Tagne 435190
{505 572) {2 409 401)
720 918 511 610
936 324 780 571
2268 155 1830 950
{2 123 810} {1675 187)
1080 569 836 324
{13710 :
843 485 036 324
338 599 1460 988
398 455 232 361
- {1354 770}

737 054 338 599
9207 542 8311158
1035823 114 168
89 579 126273
4207 194 1978352
- 3404 748

11800 36873
1250841 105 812
15 B0 079 15077 414
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Unspent Grants

National Govemment Grants
Provincial Govemment Grants
Distriet Municipallty

Less:  Unpakd Grants
District Municipality
Total Conditional Granis and Racelpts

Ses appandix T for reconciliation of grants from other sp olg t. The Icipality lind with the conditions
attached to 2l prants received to the extent of revenue recognised. No granis were withheld,

Unspent grants can mainly ba attribuied 1o projects that ans work in prog on the fi lal year-ends.

VAT
VAT PAYABLE

VAT RECEIVASLE/PAYABLE)
Less: Provision for Impairment of receivables
NET VAT RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE)

VAT is receivable/payable on the cash basis.

Fage 33

R R
348 701 1801337
43176 764 068
306 525 727 781
. 309 467
- 34604
- || 34 684
348 701 1766 853
R R
(924 738) 11327 404
3002 587 (6 804 928)
2077 851 2522 476
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

2015 2014
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {CONTINUED) R R
INVESTMENT PROPERTY R R
Nsi Carrying amouni at 1 July 0 394 158 14 200 523
Cost B 481 400 14 281 400
Buildinga 1018 985 1016 885
Land T474 415 13 284 415
Accumulated Depreciation - {97 (42) (B0 BTT)
Acquisitions 1000 -
Depreciation for the year i {10 858) {16 185)
Disposals -{18 500) .
Transfers to/from other classes._ {1 832 428) (5 790 000}
Nei Carrying amount at 30 June . 6433781 5 384 153
Cost G 541 462 8491 400
Buildings 695572 1016 985
Land 5845 880 7474 415
Accumulated Depreclation {107 701} {97 042}

Fage &7
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

CAPITALISED RESTORATION COST R R
Net Carrylng amount at 1 July 951838 1202 813
Additions. 8801703 201
Depreciation {951 638) {271 834}
Impalrments 18 612 044) {2918)
Reverssal of impaiments 10 341 547
Nei Carrying amount at 3 June - 951 838
Cost 10 66541 2083728
Accumulatad Bepraciation {1964 816) {1012 877)
Accumulated Impaimnants (8 700 B18) {89112}
INTANGIBLE ASSETS R R
Computer Sottware
Net Carrying smount a1 1 July 250 564 255 108
Cost 611 380 833 467
Accumulated Amortisation {652 B16} {578 278)
Acquisitions 70066 77913
Disposals {59173} -
Amortisation (62 708} (74 538)
Nat Cerrying emount at 30 June 206 752 254 564
Cost 922273 911 380
Accumulated Amonisation {715 521} (652 8181
HERITAGE ASSETS
Net Carrying amount at 1 July 124 00 -
Acquisitions 58 536 124 000
Net Carrying amount a1 30 June 102 536 124 000
Cost 182536 || 124 000
INVENTORY R R
Maintenance Materals - At coat - 582 841
Water = &t cost - 38 024
Total Inventory - 818 845
The FIFQ method was applied. Tha | ¥ Systemis ¢ Hy manually op and al! s for that matter were
parformed manually
RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS R R
Electricity 3511144 2392 160
Water - 32816228
Refuse 33782148 29974 988
Sewerage - 36083 924
Rental 1880 540 1357 160
Othar Consumar Dabtors igarg22 3880110
Chris Hani Debtor 14540111 6 260 998
Sundry Receivables 493 784 5Bt
Totsl Recelvables from Exch T 58 024 750 112772 007
Lass:  Provision for Impairment {40 060 287) {102 368 174}
Total Net Raceivables from E. Tr | 17 964 462 10402 833
Consumer debtors are payable within 30 days. This credit pedad g dis Idered to be i with the tarms used in the
public sector, g d praciices and legt [at ing of rade and other receivables on initial recognition is not
deemed necessary

Page 63



EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS [Continued) 20t5 2014
R R
Apeing of Recelvablas from Exchange Transactions:
Cument {0 - 30 days} 451 401 288 543
3160 Days r 114743 168 238
61 - 60 Days N pa7B 74323
+ 80 Days N, 2845254 1841 857
Total 3511 144 22302 780
Watse): Acelng
Cument {0 - 30 days)} . 908 BS2
31 - 60 Days - 818 898
€1 - 80 Days - T88 800
+ 90 Days - 30268 478
Total - 32 016 220
—
Currem {0 - 30 days} H 455098 516 166
M -60Days ;- 53rear 408 417
61 - 80 Days I 443182 404 043
+ B0 Days n 32326281 26 646 382
Total 31782 148 28 874 988
(Sewerage): Ageing
Cument (0 - 30 days) - 585 525
31 - 80 Days - 552 360
61 - 90 Days = 550 712
+ 80 Days . 34 415 328
Total - 38 083 924
(Rantal),_Acwing
Current (0 - 30 days) ! 78305 1047 052
31 - 60 Days N 83214 76053
61 - 80 Days 53187 8842
+ 60 Days 1685835 224 213
Total 1 880 540 1357 160
(Dther): Aceing
Current (0 - 30 days) f\ 1082 5
3t - 60 Days ] .
6% - 60 Days M e :
+ 60 Days A 3835717 3 880 109
Total 3337 022 3 B8O 103
Current (0 - 30 days) 85855 3326 138
31 - 80 Days 705 584 2045 085
81 - 80 Days 586 348 1 827 820
+ 80 Days 40 T3 087 99 206 146
Totsl 42 830 355 108 505 170
Reconcillation of Provislon for Bad Debts
Balance at beginning of year 102389 174 80418 528
Ci jon to provision/(R i of provision} 5735079 20 133 861
VAT pertion of Contribution{Reversal} - 1811685
Transterred to Discontinued Operations - note 50.2 (68 043 965} -
Ealance st end of year 40 060 287 102 389 174
The Prowision for i could be &l d b the different classes of rcaivables as follows:
Electricity o411 367 105
Water . 20885 986
Refuse 34224 239 26 385 297
Seweraqe - 2917913
VAT . 8804 928
Other 5135837 3 887 985
40 080 287 102 369 174
Summary of Debtors by Customaer Classification Exchange
Nanonal ang
Industrialf Provincial
Besidantiat Commerclal Government Other
20 JUNE 2015 R R R R
Current (0 - 30 days) 459 740 68 683 422 006 _—]'"',?1‘5 089 321
31-60 Days 502 157 £8 688 80302 44 438
61 - 60 Days 485 261 41483 N 58938 28 658
+ 90 Days 36 056 694 1334 783\ 231172 936 419
Sub-totial 37 483 852 1518 648 2942418 16078 B34
Less: Provision for bad debts {37 461 716} {1348 464} - {383 821}
Total dabtors by customer classification 22 135 171 183 2942 418 15 684 913
e 1
Summary of Dehtors by Cusiomer Classtication Rxchanne
Nauonal ang = o
Industrialf Provinclal - il
Resldentiat c I Governmant Other
39 JUNE 2014 R R ! R
Current {0 - 30 days) 2561114 25135/ 411 808 @ 363 600
31 - 60 Days 1371707 282422 289 784 91142
61 - 80 Days 1344 g83 215 864 175926 81 041
+ 90 Days 87 688 3 006 417 3377 002 5223 692
Sub-total 6 836 3766 058 4 254 628 11774 475
Less: Provision for bad debts B2 185 831 {3 681 BS7) (2 253 745) {4 247 600}
Total debtors by customer classHication 780 915 84 161 2 D00 B33 7 526 B7%

Concentrations of credi risk with respett to frade receivables are limited due to the municipality's large number of cusiomers. The
municipality's hisloncal experience in collection of trade receivables falls within recorted allowances. Due lo these faciors.
managemant beliaves that no additional risk beyond amounis provided for collection losses is inherent in the municipalty's trade
receivables. Assessmeni of araars on Rates and Service accounts in terms of MFMA Sec 121 (3) {e} by the Accounting Officer
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

18 2014
RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS R R
Rates 11851208 17817 730
COther Recoivables 24 693 211 488
Other Receivables | 24693 |( 211 488
Total Recaivables from Non-Exchange Transactions 11875809 18029 212
Less.  Provisian for Impatrment {7 955 764) {12 168 602}
Tota) Net Recelvablas from Non-E T { 3 B30 115 5060618
Rates debtors are payable within 30 days. This credit period g Is 1o be with the tarms usad in the
public sector, through established practices and legistation. Di ting of rates debiors are not perd d In terms of GRAP 104
on initial recognltion
Ageing of Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions:
R R
Current (0 - 30 days) Mo1ared 155 296
3 - 60 Days [ 253834 272 828
81 - 80 Days o 225130 280 938
+ 90 Days 7, 11253483 17 098 669
Total " 11851 208 17 817 730
Receoncliation of Provision for Impairment
Batance at beginning of year 12 188 602 13 062 616
C f R I of provision 5154932 (894 014)
Bad Debts Writtan Off {9 387 770} =
Balance at end of year T 555 764 12 168 602
The entire provisics {or bad debts refates 1o the putstanding rales balance.
Summary of Debiors by Customer Ctassification Non-Exchange
Navona ana
Industrialf Provinclal
Eesidentis| G lal G Qther
30 JUNE 2015 R R R R
Current {0 - 30 days) 42 696 - 24356 - 25641 L2568
31+ 60 Days 105 852 . 855Mm = 30551 21880
61+ 90 Days 68 691 ; 1T 605 < 291989 18 B45
+ 90 Days 4 462 365 2278308 a2 744 260 1 768 552
Sub-total 4 709 BO4 2475838 2830441 1835123
Less; Provision for bad debis {4876 451) {2 404 683) . {1730 837}
Total debtors by customer classHication 33 154 71175 2 B30 441 104 266
Suminary of Debiors by Customar Classification Non-Exchanaw
Natona! ano
Industrial! Provineial
Residgntial Commercial Governiment Qther
20 JUNE 2014 R R R R
Current {0 - 30 days) 80613 247190 23381 17113
3160 Days 131674 76 702 39 148 25101
€1-90 Days 126 584 101 737 37535 25073
+ 80 Days 9067 299 2675200 3 687 452 1728724
Sub-total 9355772 i 2878 432 3787 516 1796 011
Legs; Provision for bad debts {8 384 B18) (2728 853) - - {1,045 330}
Total debtors by customer classification - 881 153 144 779 3 787 516 T50 681
R —— B ————
Concentrations of credit risk with raspect to trade receivables are limited due to the ipality's large bar of Tha
icipality's historical exper In lon of trade receivables falls within recorded allowances. Due to thesa factors,
management believas thal no additional risk bayond amounts provided for collaction losses Is Inherent in the municipality's trada
receivables. Assessment of arears on Rates ang Service accounts in terms of MFMA Seci121 (3} (&) by the Accounting Officer.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
R R
The Municipality as Lessor {Asset)
Balance on 1 July 63222 49 887
Movement during the yaar 14 184 13325
Balance on 30 June T7 418 63222
At the Siatemeni of Financial Pesition date, whera the municipality acts as a Lessar under operating leases, It wil receive
operating lease income as follows:
Upio 1 Year 125 522 78 807
1105 Years 458 B8 385 363
More than 5 Years 107 B76 116 555
Total Operating Lease Arr 593 294 578 826

The Municipality does not engage in any sub-rase amangemants
The Municipality did not receive Bny contingent rent during the year

Certain of the Munitipaity's properties are leased lo third partes to generate rantal income. Leases receipls escalate annually an
average by 10%. Lease agreaments are non-cancelable and have terms from 3 to 10 years,

Page £5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Assoly

Call Investments Deposhts
Bank Accounts

Cash Floats

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - Assets

Cash and cash aquivalents comprise of cash held and short term daposits. Tha camying amount of thess assets approximates

their fair value.
The Municipality has the following bank accounts:
Current Accounty

Standard Bank - Currani Account - 082-665-658
Standard Bank - Cumrent Account - 082-630-631
First National Bank - Cusrent Aczount - B20-4808-6428

Al accounts is claared dally 1o Primary Bank Account; current account 082-665-858.
Standard 8ank - Current Account - 0B2-665-358

Cash book balance at baginning of year

Cash boak balanca at end of year

Bank ki al bag g of year
Bank statement batance al and of year

Standard Bank - Current Account - 082-630-831
Cash bogk balance at beginning of year
Cash book batance at end of year

Bank i al beg g of year
Bank statement batante at end of year

First National Bank - Current Account « 620-4898-6428
Cash book balance &t beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of ysar

Bank a1 baginning of year
Bank statament batance al and of year

|
PROPERTY RATES

Achipl

Rataabls Land and Bulldings
Residantial, Commercial Property, State
Aqricultural

Less: Rebates

Total Assessmant Rates

Valuations

Rateabla Land and Builgings:
Residential

Agticultural

Govemment

Business & Commercial
Muricipal

Exempt Properties

Total Assessment Rates

Waluations on land and bulldings are perfonmed every four years. Tha last valuation came Into effact on 1 July 2014.

Page &4

R R
28 563 011 A 814217
3192247 9381 785
21 142 17 238
31 776 400 50 293 250

R R
470 728 5108 340
1863230 2713783
858 260 1538871
3 192 247 8 361 795
5108 340 5242232
470 728 5 108 340
5108 340 5242 232
470 728 5108 340

—

2713783 944 853
1863 238 2713 783
2713783 944 853
1663 238 2713783
1538871 3228 783
858 280 1 539 671
1828671 32268 783
858 260 1 539 671
3718278 3218438
2975297 2 948 250
743 B8O 270 188
3719 278 3218432
233374 200 201 715 000
491 572 100 155 B89 993
56 766 100 82 697 500
101 116 200 101 197 500
93719 300 141 288 000
45 764 200 47 682 000
1 622 311 100 B1% AG7 993
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

Unconditional Grants
Equitabla Share

Conditional Grants

Grants and subsidies
Subsidies

Tetal Govamment Grants and Subsidies

Governmeni Grants and Subsidies - Capitat
Government Grants and Subsidies - Operating

Revenua recognised par vota as required by Section 123 (¢) of the MFMA

Equitabla share
Budget ard Treasury
Community Services
Elactricity

IPED

Refuse

Roads Trenspon

Tha municipality does not expect any significanl changes to the lavel of grants.

Equitable shara
Opening balance
Grants received

Conglitions skl to be mat

Local G t Fl Ial M. Gramt {FMG)
Opaning balance

Grants recelvad

Conadions stll to ba met

Municipal Systems improvement Grant (MSIG)
Qpening balance

Grants recalved

Conditions still o ba met

Munikcipal Infrastructure Grant {MIG)

Opening balanca

Grants received

Conditions still o ba mel

Page 07

R R
92 038 000 78 748 000
92038000 || 78 748 00D
51241 9352 47 880 577
51241052 " 47 890 577
143 270 852 126 618 577
e LA LLS
30309227 28 196 256
112 880 725 98 441 321
143 270 952 126 638 577
I
92038 000 78 749 000
2839883 2 540 000
1130846 826 995
11 000 000 10 996 000
86 133 2874 020
1801881 40532
34 373 209 30 613 030
143 279 952 126 638 577
92 038 000 78 748 000
1 800 000 1 650 000
934 000 890 000
720 893 2518239
30 970 000 27 281 000
- 720 893
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES (CONTINUED)

Integrated National Electrification Grant (INEP)
Opening balance
Grants recalved

Grant expendiure to be recovered

Other Grants

Opening balance

Grants recelved

Grants transfered

Conditions stil to be met

Total Grants

Opening balance

Grants raceived

Grants transferred

Condttions still to be mat{Grant expenditure 1o be recovered]

SERYICE CHARGES_

Electricity

Water

Rafuse removal

Sewerage and Sanitation Charges

Less: Rebales
Total Service Charges
INTEREST EARNED

Extsrmal Investmantis

Interasi Investments

Interesi Bank Balance

Interest Other

Total Extarnal Investments
Outstanding Deblors

Proparty Rates

Sanitation

Refuse

Elactricity

Water

Rent

Total Outstanding Dabtors

Lass: T {errad to DI k Op « Note 50.2
Tolal O Ing Debtors Continued

Tota! Interest Eamead

Page &2

015 204
R R
a 296 000
11 000 000 10 000 000
1 045 758 I g
5153 770 2846 636
{33 771) {35 865)
348 890 1045 758
1768 854 T 225 458
141 895 770 121 218 638
{33 771) {35 865)
348 701 1766 653
8822735 8077 738
- 7047 087
2810797 I3 512
- 4 140 880
11633 532 22279 328
{453 BB3) (898 68%5)
11178 543 21 380 644
3312532 2977 687
a7 416 26 124
- 745
3 349 8439 3 004 556
1280 637 1402 340
2267 565
2244 607 1881 851
238644 164 683
& 2071 241
186713 36479
3929 602 T8I 878
- {4 338 806
vvem——
3 929 602 3495 172
—
7279 550 498 728




EMALARLENI MUNICIPALLLY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

OTHER INCOME 2015 2014
R R
Administration chames 1881201 1876 944
Bullding plans 18 880 -
Eranding of Livestock 41 580 -
Cemelery Foes 822 30212
Chris Hani DM {Water & SanHation) 22303720 23486 027
Connection Fees 53232 -
Insurance Income /1175 -
LGSETA &7 080 -
Pound Faes 123 40 106
Registrations 122 -
Housing Admin Fees - 36600
Sundry Incoma 20 610 348 747
Total Other Income 24 930 565 25819 636
Less: Transferred to Discontinued Oparations - Note 50.2 22 393 720 23 467 037
Total Other Income Continusd 2 536 845 2322 539
—
Sundry income rapresents sundry income such as cleaning of sites, privats work and fees far items not
included under servica charges.
Feitg 2014

EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS R R
Salaries and Wages 3T 407 093 38305717
Annual bonus 2268 155 2268 141
Coninbytions for LIF, pensions and ical alds 8214 787 5300 820
Houslng Subsidy 1718 142 528
Leave Reserve Fund 1442858 1834 676
Long service awards 260 393 241094
Overime 13831086 1503 283
Post Employment Health 698 768 426 780
Performance bonus 714 879 {2 302 885)
Sklils davelopment levy 331735 246 368
Travel, motor car. leleph i and other 1 500 260 1134 143
Provisien for Ex-Gratia payment- CFO 15 382 13760
Workmen's Compensaton 398 455 232 391
Total Employes Related Costs 52752 617 47 347 704
Less: Transfarred to Discontinued Oparations - Note 50.2 16 976 009) {9 556 827)
Total Employes Related Costs Continued 42 782 608 37 750 857
Municipal Manager and & othar Senior Managers are appointad on fixed term contracts.
REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
R ion of the Municipal Manager (MM Dr VS Vataia)
Annual Remunaration 1340719 1210 000
Performance Sonuses 185 900 -
Leave encashment 42 802 -
Telephone. assistanca and other allowances 26138 34 200
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Bampalning council 15 688 11494
Total 1631235 1255 694
Remuneration of the Director Technicat Services (M Miuyana - only 4 months 2014)
Annual Remunearation - 02 644
Ex-gratia remuneration 114618 -
Leave encashment - 172 B5S
Telephone, assistance and other allowances - 8 200
Contributions to UIF, SOL, Bargaining council - 4421
Total 1134 216 486 121
Remuneration of the Manager Corporate Services (Manager Corporate Services - P Sohe}
Annual Remuneration §99 364 907 933
Perormance Bonuses 127111 11 700
Laave encashment M 959 -
Acting Allowance 15 698

lephone, assk and other all 22 508 20 460
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Bargaining counc 120N 8191
Total 1208 709 548 284
R ion of the Chief Fi ial Officer {GP de Jager)
Annual Remuneration 1050 2682 247 733
Pearformance Bonuses 173648 8 000
Leave ancashmant 33360 -
Teleph and other 18 600 18 600
Contributions to UIF, SDL. Bamaining couneil 13118 7834
Total 1288 008 982 167
Remunaration of the Director Community Services (NP Mryengeza for 8 months 2014)
Annual Remuneration - 680 950
Ex-gratia 1134818 -
Leave ancashmen! . 172 B55
Teleph and pther - 13 950
Contributions o LIF, SDL, Bamaining counsi - T 416
Total 1134 816 375170
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIFALILY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Remuneration of the Manager IPED Services (N Mniuydwa) 2015 2014
Annual Remuneration 1004 446 907 932
Performance Bonuses 63 555 84818
Teleph i and other gl 18 600 18 600
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Bargaining council 11235 83r2
Total 1097 837 1021729
Remuneration of the Director Strategic Services (AM Stemefa § months 2014) 2015 2014
Loave encashment - 208 866
Telaph i and othar alk - 10 B850
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Bargaining councll - 7 851
Total 1134 918 808 517
e
Remuneration of the Director Infrastructure and Human Settiements (D Nilo)
Annual Remuneralicn 068 728 226 9682
Performance Bonuses 18 159 .
Teleph and other alk 18 600 8 850
Contributions 1o UIF, SDL, Bargalning council 11 06% 1 881
Total 1 046 554 267 7115
Ramunaration of the Acting infrastructure and Human Setttements Director { M Geall - 5 months 2014)
Acting Allowanca - 79 238
Teleph i and other alk - 8200
Contributions to UiF, SOL, Barpaining council - 1932
Towl - 87 372
Remuneration of the Directer Community Services (N Nyazd)
Annual Remuneration 998 728 15% 322
Performance Bonuses 13 618
Telaph & and othar alk 30 000 25900
Contributions to UIF, SDL. Bargaining eounci 10 604 1254
Totsl 1052 848 178 416
Acting Allowance for acting as Director Corporate Services Manager
Atting Allowance { 1 month acting as Director Community Sanvice - Y Nkwentsha} - 20119
Acting Allowance { 1 month acling as Birector Community Servica - ZB Mzilani] - 15 256
Total - 15 376
REMUNERATION OF COUNCILLORS R R
Bayor 739 363 119 046
Speaker 588 264 583 129
Exsculive Committes Members 2 356 602 2417 422
Counclliors £419 529 611% 447
Total Counciflors' Remuneration 10 103 758 8 841 645
in-kind Benelits
Tha Mayor and Speaker are fulk-time. The Mayor and Speaker are provided with offices and secretarial support at the cost of tha
Councll. The Mayor has use of a Council owned vehlcle and a drivar for official duties.
CQUNCILLORS
1 Nyukwana, N. Exacutive Mayor ANC Mayor Ward 8 730 383 719646
2 Lal, N, Spasker ANC Speaker Ward 13 464 538 563 120
3 Liwani, 5. Chief Whip ANC Executive Committes Ward & 559 740 520 238
4 Kalolo, D.S. Expcutive Commities ANC Executiva Committes Ward 7 5t2 012 529 238
5 Phendu. N, Execuilve Committes ANC Proportional Beceased 30 Juns - 520238
6 Kulashe, 7. Executive Committea ANC Executive Committes Ward 11 558 740 520238
7 Twala, B.P. Executive Commities ANC Executive Committes Ward 10 471 500 300471
8 Nkasela, K. Exacutive Committes part time ANC Executiva Committes Ward 2 287 832 281831
9 Mool L. Chalmerson of Section 78 Committes  ANC Ward Counclllor 2 287 488 224 216
10 Konl, N.F. Councitlor ANC Ward Countilior 1 354 070 224 218
11 Ziduli, N. Councillor ANC Ward Councillor 3 238418 224 218
12 Bobotyana, H.C. Councliior ANC Ward Councilior 4 236 418 224218
13 Mapate, P. Councillor ANC Ward Councillor § 238 116 224 116
14 Qashanl, N. Ceuncillor AN Ward Councillor 6 238 416 224 218
15 Peler, N. Councitior L Ward Councitor 7 236416 224 216
16 Nobaza, P, CouncHlor ANC Ward Councifior 8 236 418 224 216
17 Dudumashs, T.R. Councillor ANC Ward Councillor 8 236 418 224 218
18 Gwegwana, L. Councillor ANC Ward Counciltor 10 238416 224216
19 Teka, ZH. Councillor ANC ‘Ward Councilior 11 238418 224 216
20 Dyonase, Z. Councllior ANC Ward Counclilor 12 236 418 224 216
21 Kraga, N. Councitlor ANC Ward Countillor 13 2368 116 224 218
22 Godla. M. Councillar ANC Ward Councillor 14 236 416 224 218
23 Mnyuko, 5. Councillor ANC Ward Councllior 15 238418 224 216
24 Komani, B, Councillor ANC Ward Counciilor 18 2368 418 224 216
25 Papiso, . Councillor ANC Propertional Ward 17 236418 224 218
26 Jordaan, V Councillor ANC Proportional Ward 4 236 416 224 216
27 Dukilifl, N, Councillor ANG Proportional Ward 14 236 416 224 216
28 Holana, N. Counciligr ANC Froportlonal Ward 17 236 418 224 16
28 Ndlela, T.R. Councillor ANC Proportional Ward 12 238 116 224 216
30 Manl, M. Councillor ANC Proportional Deceased mid March 2015 161 693 224 216
31 Mjezw, K. Councillor uoDM Proportional Ward 10 236 416 224 216
32 Greyiing, P. Councillor DA Proportional Ward 14 236 118 224 216
33 Mketsu, 2. Councillor COPE Proportional Ward 5 236 416 224 218
3 Kwatshana, T. Councillor PAM Propoctional Ward 16 236416 224 216
35 Sicishe, TO. Councillor ANC Proportional Ward 3 177 312 E
36 Boklaink, SN Ceundillor ANC Proportional Waerd 18 19 701 =

Gazette amounts

10 103 758

9 811 645

ped i Section 219 of the Constitulion, read with the

Fage 70

ent's deler

in o with this Act.
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

DEBT IMPAIRMENT

Trade Recelvabies from - Note 15
Trade Racelvables from no change Ir 1s - Note 18
Total Contribution to Dabt Impalrment

Less: Ti farred to O Inuad Op - Nots 50.2

Total Contribution to Debt Impalrmant Continued
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Property Plant and Equipment
Capltatised Restoration Cost
Investment Proparty
Intargible Assets

Total Depraciation and Amortisation
Lass: Transferrad to Di inued Operations - Note 50.2
Total Depreclation and Amortisation C

FINANCE CHARGES

Landfill sita

Long service awards
Long-term Liabilties
Post Employment Haalth

Total finance charges

REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

Roads. Pavemnants & Bridges

Storm water

Electricity Transmission & Raticulalion
Straet Lighling

Water Raticulation

Sanliation Reticutation

Parks & gardens.

Sponsfieids 8 stadia

Cematanies

Genaral vehicles

Plant & equipment

Fumiture and other office equipment
Civic Land and Bulldings

Total repair and maintenance
Less: Transferred to Discontinusd Operations - Note 50.2
Total rapale and maintenance Continued

BULK PURCHASES

Electricity
Total Bulk Purchases

OTHER OPERATING GRANT EXPENDITURE

Operating grant expenditure per voin
Budgel and Treasury
Comarate Services
Electricity
IPED
Refusa
Roads Transpont
Water and Sanitation
Total Operating grani expendltura
Loss. Ti tarred to DI inued Cp - Note 50.2
Total Operating grant expendiiurs Continued

Pags 71

2015 W14

8412111 20484 714
5 154 932 {1250 088)
13567 042 18 244 628
= {18 348 897)

13 567 042 895 528
21041514 19 899 673
851638 271194
10 658 18165

82 706 74 838

22 066 5186 20 382 310
- 2 634

22 066 518 20 359 026
144 84 123 555
104 381 78 853
57785 137 297
478 769 350 081
786 929 &89 T8
1245268 938 809
324 142 250 343
337 847 25672
14 000 B30 333
2589282 2701 853
61850 ey
234 834 1211
2879 -

477 536 87 358
182877 715232

2 642 510 2486 T11
85476 5 048
1548331 271 885
10 344 892 8728 762
5 2681 383 5 225 768
5083 209 3 502 064
14 809 208 12 B50 608
14 B0 208 12 050 609
ATIEBIT 3939225
4 577 -

8 767 754 © 649 208
2229480 3356 896
1896416 40 532
5636 601 2 344 858
- 141 208

23 DEQ 456 19 471 817
- {141 ZDUI

23 060 456 19 330 609




EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

GENERAL EXPENSES R R

Adverlisements asTen 484 021
Auditors Remunaration 2989 417 3248 158
Bank Charges 180 773 222 866
Chris Hanl DM {Capital tems} 1678 560 2304 005
Cleaning 110 884 271 974
Conferences and Seminars 1172522 555 118
Consulting and Professional fees 1267 583 488 261
Centribution: Restoration cost landfill sites - 12216
Fusl and oil 2 780 505 2978 405
Insurance 1108 081 803 262
Lease rentals on oparating lsase 390 207 261 482
Leaner ship - -
Markeling 137 621 347 gaz2
Madical Exams 220 -
New Connactions 205 148 257
Pauper Burlals 2850 -
Plant Hire 69 757 175 408
Policies 281 001 -
Printing and stationery 1818 925 1385063
Projects 2 580 621 1748279
Protective Clathing 302 059 431 398
Public participation 839 362 482 2189
Relocation Cost 23 000 -
Revenue Enhancement Strategy 222111 -
Revenue Enhancement 105 833 -
Security 1598 754 1184 522
Software expenses - 123470
Special C Projects; i Youth day 1529878 754 885
Subscription and M ip fees 858 450 608 885
Subsistenca and Travel 2252 483 1578 806
Telephona gand fax 1480 499 1140 142
Training 665 040 583810
Transpen and freight £55 264 368 B35
Travel - local 5217 184 4078 357
Ward Commitiea cost 463 342 200 700
Water samples 344 189 281 978
Mayor Cup 486 125 411 988
Library Assats 174 82t -
Licensa Fees 484 262 3ea 708
Traditionat Leadars Expanditure 70 490 88 100
Valuation Rol 8080 B35 147
Wellness Day 268 801 387 449
Disaster Expanditura 878 624 434 B3O
Refuse Bags 220622 2268 302
Water Purffication 818 aog 895611
Matarial Stores 13237 564 187 877
Water Blua Drop 86 D44 T2 60
Adminisiralion charges 21 582 18 300
Sanitation Green Drop 20 250 73220
Health and Salety Trainlng - 10 005
Fleet Management s5g211 31808
Books, Magazines & Publication 15113 4 884
Congress Fae 3 600 4 248
Consumables 33764 368 85T
Postage 9588 16 441
Cleaning Materlals 17218 BE%4
PMS & IDP Complianca 387234 336 B42
Electricity Service Chames 349 284 -
Field Band Project 482 136 579 882
Data Cleansing 8520 96 626
Study Assistance 228 576 128 862
Network Infrastructure Improvement 501 8O0 39474
FMS Expenditure and Licances 750 135 -
Staff Tools Of Trade 8712 -
General Expanses 40845774 32853 308
Less: Ti ferred to DI d Op = Nole 50.2 7 156 318 7 991 549
= | Exp Conil 13 485 456 24 881 757
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

CORRECTION OF ERROR IN TERMS OF GRAP 3
CURRENT EMP.OYEE BENEFITB

Baisncs previously reparted

Comeclon

©of Provinon for Stall Leave
c of Bonus A d Provis

PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Balancs praviously epartsd
Comsctions of trada pavabias - Reler to note 7
Correttions of Sec 57 Ex Gratie pavments - Relfer to note 7

R fh of payab g and comreclion of rade paysbles.
OPERATING LEASE ASBET

Balancs previously reporied

Flrst time recognition of Operating Lesse Asset prior to 1 July 2013
Correction of movemant 2014

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Balance previcusty mported

Furniture & Equi i hof year - Dapreciation
Furniture & Equi i oot year

C Herdware i eriot year - Dapreclation
C Herdwere i o d prict vear

Plant & Equi [ dy d pnor year - Daprecialion
Prant & Equi [ o d prior year

Deeds seprch - nodhbons Land & Bulkdings
Deeds search - aodibons buildwigs & Prior year smor comection Deprecistion

RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Balance previously reported

Elaciricity wrongly levied for the 2012/2013 Financial year. Refer 1o note 15
Reluse wrongly levied for the 2012/2013 Financial year. Refer 19 note 15

Renlal wronaly levied for tha 2012/2013 Financial year. Rater to note 15

Cihar Services wrongly levied Tor the 201272013 Financial vear. Refer io nots 15

Mainly rep by the jan of Chns Hanl District Municipality dabl as ivebles lrom

RECEIVABLES FROM NON EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Balance previously mporied
Cormection of Property Rates wrongly lsvied. Refer nole 16

NON CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Balance praviously mponed
Correction of Ex- Gratia paymant provision i.r.o 20122014

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVENUE PREVIOUSLY REPORTED

Rental of facilities and squipment
Relates to the oparating lsase register antries

EXPENDITURE PREVIOUSLY REPORTED

Employes related costs

Cotraction of Bonus and Leave provision i.r.o 20172014
Tha figure was adj o the iation of payabid
Cormection of Ex- Gratia paymen| pravision Lr.o 201072014
Daprecistion and b,

Daeprediation charges wers ‘auolowrungdlpoml
Contracted Services

The figure was sdusled 1o the iliation of payabk
Repsirs and mairtensnce

The figure was adjusted to the r iliation of payabl
Other cpersting grant expenditure

The figure was adjusted to the ilkation of payabl
General axpenses

The figure was adjusted to the iilation of payabi

Fage 73

014 1013
s11a2n -
787 .
588
§ 129 083 -
14 093 407 .
158327 -
28080 -
18 077 414 -
™l U704
{21897) (21887}
5004 .
8] 222 a7
AZ1 TIT 504 -
{1679) 040}
8142 0142
(24 051) {12870y
70048 TO 848
(1573 {1311)
1870 1870
401 800 401 800
(12 352} {10 293}
422 240 I 457 037
10606 538 10 358 304
(38 806) {38 608)
{8 704) {6 T84)
{185 239) (185239
155 064} {55 D84)
10 402 433 10 075 802
17283 709 15 348 067
(45 979) {45 979
17 817 T30 15 323 087
4 674 008 4041 328
142 180 128 400
8 818 188 4 989 726
e
2014 2013
R R
190 501 608 .
5864 {185 239)
—iosugEy —fies Ty
195 832 558 -
10715 .
28 680
12780
14232
35520 -
18387 -
9658 -
§3785 -
198 055 331 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

CORRECTION OF ERROR [N TERMS OF GRAP ) {Continued)

e 2013
STATEMENT OF CHANOES IN NET ASSETS R R
Balsnce previously reoorted 48878 147 415112008
Cash and cash sguivelanis 5 =
Operatng Lease Assel {18 002y {21 097}
Payasbles lrom exchange transactions {184 007} -
Curren! smpicyes benefis {10718) -
Employes Banefits {142 180) {128 400)
Property, plani and sguipment 442 803 48T 037
Recaivables from ) {283 700 (203 703
Recaivables from non ] 145 970) (45 979)
A58 543 328 ATS 089 154
s 2014
RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET SURPLUSADEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR AND CASH GENERATEDHARSORSED) &Y
OPERATIONS R R
SurplugiDafici) for the yesr (11 156 838} {5 545 828)
Adiurtments fot;
Depraciaticn/Ameontisabon 22 068 217 20342 510
Loss on of property. plant and T zm? 418700
Contnbuted Assely {346 075
Impaiment Loss 247 520 11254 728
imparment (Reversals) {10 341) {3347}
C Irmo provi « Noa-Curment 17137118 1237 403
= ion fromo provi « Non-Current - Expendhiure incurted (15173 (58 401}
[= fromito provisions « Non-Cument - Acuarial lossus - %1203
= ion fromito inions « Nen-Cument - Actuanial gams {920 454) .
Conlnbution to provisions = curmant 4825 45 431167
Coninbution to provisions = curenl - E: L (3043 208} 16 314 209
Debl Impairment 13 587 042 895 620
Discontnued Cperatons - Asssts and Liabiirties Transfamred . {2 833 3530)
Operating leass income | (sxpenses) accrued {14 184) {13 325)
Opsrating Surplus/{Daficil) balors changes in working capits! 36 970 048 2824470
Changas in working capital (18 818 04T) {61072}
incrense/{Decrenss) in Psysbles from exchenge irensactions 725085 10 581 026
incranss/{Decranse) in Unspanl € |G Granis and Recaip {1452 638) (5424 120}
incransa/{Decresse) in Unpad Conditional G Grants and Recej e {34 684}
Incraase/(Decresse) in Taxas 444 825 {347 380}
/DX inl ¥ 818885 {218 796}
WX in Recaivables from g% &nd Mor-exchange transsclions {19 185 190} {4 597 918)
Cash g dfabsorbad) by operath 18 153 ¢39 17 882 604
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cath snd cash squivalents included in the cash flow prisa the 9:
Call Invesiments Deposiis - Note 18 2038301 41814 217
Cash Fiosts - Note 18 21142 17238
Bank - Nols 18 3192 247 9 38t 705
Total cash gnd cash sguivalents 31 TTE 400 50 993 250
RECONCHLIATION OF AVAH ABLE CASH AND INVESTMENT RESCURCES
Cash and Cash Equivalants - Note 35 31 776 400 50 993 250
3 TIB 400 50 993 7450
Lass. HaT01 1801 337
Unagent Commitied Conditional Geants - Nota 7 | g0t || 1801337
Resaurces available for working capltsl requirements 31 427 €88 49191513
Alocated to;
Employew Benefits Reserve 14 859 953 12 568 700
NonCurrent Provisions Resarve ] 2119287
Resources avakable for working capital requirements 18 577 148 34 405 823
UTILISATION OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES RECONCILIATION
Long-lerm Liabiites - Nols 2 210383 548 033
Used to finance property, plant and #quipment - al cost {810 383) (548 032

Cash sl aside for the repayment of long-term kabuities
Cash Invesied for repayment of iong-term liabilities

Long-term kablilies have been utilized in accordance with the M: pal Finanza Manag Act
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE DISALLOWED R R

a1

Unauthorised sxoenditure

Raconciliation of unauthorised expanditure:

Cpening balance - 10172020
Unauthorised expenditure for the year - capital . 964
Unauthorised expenditure for the year - oparating 6981 B35 12747 656
Written off by council {9 881 835) (22 920 641}
Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authortsation . -
Unauthodsed expenditure on operating votes is mainly due to depreciation and debt imp it chang:
Ineid: Disciplinary stapsicriminal sedings
QOver expanditure on approved operational and
capital . None, report have bean presanied lo Council
2015 2015 2045 2015
R R R R
{Actual) (Budgst} Var ] {Unauthorised)
Unsuthorised expendityre cutrent vear - onerating
Exacutive and Couneil 25993 826 28 362 323 (2 383 687) .
Buoget and Treasury Office 262171223 24413953 1 883 269 1863269
Corporate Services 18 940 11 16919 485 21248 212486
Community and 5oclal Services 30 385 425 22 208 108 B 087 319 8097 318
IPED 8226 299 11 550 025 {3 323 T26) .
Tachnical Services 84 346 676 B:f 423 320 {3076 653) -
204 134 970 202 967 201 1217 768 9081 B35
Unauthorised expandiiure curreni year - capital 2015 2015 ms 2015
R R R R
[Actual} (Budget) {Vari; ) {Unauthorised)
Budget and Treasury 1511718 1512 000 {282} -
Communhy and Scclal Services 24 030 B25 25614 856 {1582 831} -
Cormorate Servicas 457 623 458 000 (3™ -
Executive and Council 4277127 4 325000 {47 BT -
IPED 712 7135 860 000 {147 285) -
Technical Services 7 185 450 8301137 {1 115687} -
A8 175478 41070783 {2 895 315) o
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE DISALLOWED {Contlnued} 2018 2014
R R
Erpltgsy and wastetul expenditurg
Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure:
Opaning balance 17146 T 16 880 460
Frultless and wasteful axpenditure ihe year Ga041 266 281
Written off by councit {17 148 721} .
Recovered Fruitless and wasteful expanditure the year -
Fruliess and wasteful expenditure awaiting further action &8 041 17 146 721
Incldent Discip Y stepsicriminal procesdings
id to Eskom and Telkom None - 2102
alties weie paid on VAT late su None - 16783
Interest was paid 1o Eskomn and Talkom prior year Nong 7 -
claimed withoul supplier vat number on invoice None . 247 288
W.Atkuyana-salary paid incorectly To be investigated 68 033 -
B8 041 266 261
lar 1
Reconciliation of irmegular expenditure:
Opening balance 132 804 408 14071518
Imegular expanditure for the year 20259 703 53 239 242
Irregular expenditure for the prior year - 5483 647
Irregulsr expenditire awaiting further action 153 064 111 132 404 408
R53 239 242 was written of by Council after the reponting date. (see also note 43}
|incident Disciplinary steps/criminal proceadings
SCM fures not followsd carent year None 17 785 488 §3 239 242
Litaba Basedi investmant Nong 1604 746
MzBendLimkhiwa Constuction Jv Nona B69 481
SCM protedures nol foliowed paor year Imvestigated 53 230 242 5493 647
73 498 845 58 732 88D
Material Loysey
Units purchased (Kwh) 14 531 976 13157117
Units sold {Kwh) B 65268 238 7048 520
Units lost during distribution (Kwh) 5605 640 & 108 588
Percentage lost during distribution 38.57% 46.43%
Loss in Rand Value 5493 527 5986 418
ADDITIONAL BISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF MUNICIPAL FINANGCE MANAGEMENT ACT
nl - [MFMA 1 - A
Opening balance - £8 268
Council subscriptions 506 000 487 M6
Amount paid - current year {506 000) {487 348)
Amount paid - pravious years - {68 268)
Balance unpald (included In craditors) - .
Auolh Gees - [MEMA 125 (1)fch]
Opening balance 8 -
Current year audit iea 29689417 3248 159
Extemal Audit - Auditod-General 2989 417 | 3248159
Amount paid - current yaar {2988 417) {3248 159)
Balance unpaid (included in craditors) B -
VAT . 1
Opening balance 1070 930 1831 357
Amounts recaivad - curent year 5223304 8371 045
Amounts received - pravious years 1702 B85 {222015)
Amounts claimed - current year {10 060 247} {9 208 458}
Closing balance - {(Receivable) / Payable {2 093 820) 1070 930
VAT Is payableireceivable on the cash basls. VAT is only paid over to SARS once cash is mceived from dabtors and onty
claimed from SARS once payment is made 1o creditors.
A F - [MFMA
Opening batance 5 5
Cument year payroll deductions and Council Contributions 9 608 870 6651 870
Amount paid - cument year (8 857 D39) {8 651 670}
Balance unpald {included In Sreditors) 549 831 -
i | - MA 1
Opening balance
Currant year payroll deductions and Council Contributions 11 206 347 9087 087
Amount paid - cument year (11206 347) {9 087 067}

Balance unpaid (Included In craditors)
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT {CONTINUED)]

The following Councillors had amear accounis for more lhas B0 days as ai 10 June:

2015 2014
R R
o ding o ding
mare than 80 inore than 80
days days

Godla, M. - 2508

Komanl, B 25214 132 878
Total Counclilor Arrear Consumer Accounts 25214 115 184
Other gon-comollance [MEMA 12521e)) -
Terms of Section 65(2Xe) of the Municipal Finance Managamant Act, 2003 (Act N 58 of 2003}{MFMAL
Some Craditors were not paid within 30 days.
Tarms of Section 71{1) of the Municipal Financa Management Act, 2003 {Act No 56 of 2003) (MFMAL
Some Reports were not submitied within 10 working days.

110t ! I
In terms of section 38 of the Municipal Supply Chain Manag tations any deviation from the Supply Chain Management
Policy needs to bs approved/condoned by the Municipal Manager and neted by Councl,
Tota) Suppliers Amount

Deviations {C } approved by Municipal M 12 15724 218
Deviations {Sole 5 pproved by Municlpwl Managcr 186 2207 836
CaPTaL COMII'MENTS R R
Commitmants in respsct of capltal axpendiiure:
Approved and contractad for 17 555428 24 366 570

Infrastruciurs | 17 555 426 " 24 366 570
Approved but notl yel contracted for - 4519153
Total 17 555 428 20 835 723
This axpenditurs will be financed from:

Exiernal Logns 5 5

Capital Replacemnent Reserve - 384 513

Govemnment Grants 17 555 428 28 501 210
Total 17 555 426 28 885 723
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 1M H

Tha activitles of the municipality expose it to a varlety of fi ial risks, ingluding market risk (comprising fair value inlerest rate
risk, cash fiow interest rate sk and price risk), credit risk and quidity nsk. The municipality's overall fisk management programme
i on tha unpradictabiity of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on tha municipality's financlal
performanca.

{8} Foreign Exchange Currency Risk

The municipality did nct engage In any foreign cumency transaction.

{bl Price risk

The municipality is not exposed to price risk.
fc) tnterest Rate Risk

As the municipallty has significant Interest-baaring llabiities, the entity's Income and operating cash flows ars substantiatly

on changes in markel i rales.

The i ial to interest rate chang on a cunﬂnuuus basis. Diferent scenarics are

simuiated which Inducle reﬂnanning. renewal af curent positions, Bl and hedging. Based on these

scanarios, the entity calculates the Impact that a change in interest rates wil have on the sufplusa’deﬂcn for the year. Thesa

scenarios are only simutaled for iabilties which constitute the majority of intarest bearing lkabétties.

The municipality did not hedga agains! any injerest rats risks duting the cumenl ysar.

The potential impact on the entity’s surplusideficit for the year due 10 changes in interesi rates were as foliow: T

R

1% {2012 - 0.5%) Increase kn interest rates 308 449

0.5% (2012 - 0.5%) Decrease in Interest rates {154 724)
{d) Cradit Risk

Cradit risk Is the risk that a counter party to a financial or non-fingncial assel will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
Icipality to Incur a fi ial loss.

Credit righ consist mainly of cash deposits, cash aquivalents, trade and other receivables and unpaid conditional grants and
subsidies.

Reteivables are disclosed net after provisions are made for impairment and bad debts. Trade deblors compnise of a large
number of ratspayers, dispersad across different sectors and geographical sreas. Ongoing credit evaluaticns are parformad
on the financial condition of these dablors, Credit risk pertgining to trade and other debtors is 3 d to be maod due
the diverssified natura of and & tial nature of individual bal . In the case of consumer debtors the
municipality etfectively has the rghl to i services to ¢ but in practice this is difficult to apply. In the case of
dabtors whosa accounts bacome in arrears, Council endeavours to collect such accounts by ‘Iuvying ul' penalty charges”,
“demand for payment”, "restriction of servicas™ and, o3 8 last resort, “handed over for coll ", W [ e is
mpplicable in terms of Counci's Credit Cantred and Debt Collection Pollcy

The tredil quality of Ivables ara d on individual deblors basis, The accounts are then impaired on a Individual
basis basad on the risk profile/credit quality assoclated with that Individual account.

Al rates and services am payable within 30 days from invoice date. Refer to note 15 and 18 for a¥l balances oulstanding
longer than 30 days. These balances represent all deblors at ysar end which defaulted on their credit lerms. Also refer (o note
15 for bal included In receivables that were re-negetiated for the perod under review
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

Balances past due not impaired:

% R * R
Nen-Exchapqe Recelvabies
Rates and other recelvables 160.00% 3 820 138 100.00% 5860 816
Exchange Recejvables
Elactricity 15.10% 212676 18.98% 1974 260
Water 0.00% - ~12.16% {1265 174}
Refuse ~20.24% {5253 485) =L11% {115 650)
Seweraga 0.00% . +13.87% {1442 497)
Other 114.14% 20505271 108.16% 11251 894
100.00% 17 984 462 100.00% 10 402 033
Nao recetvables are pledged as security for financial liabilities.
Due to the short tenm nature of ivabies the camying valus disclosad In note 15 and 16 of the financial statements is an
approximation of its fair value. Interest on overdua bat are Inc! at prime landing rate plus 1% where applicabla,
The provision for bad debts could be aflocated betwsen the differant classes of deblors as follows.
% R % R
Non-Exchanae Receivables
Rates and other receivables 100.00% 7955764 100.00% 12 168 802
Exchange Recelvgbies
Electricity 1.75% 100411 0.41% 418 500
Water 0.00% - 3.20% 34 081 401
Refuse 85.43% 34 224 239 29.20% 30090 830
Sewerane 0.00% - 36.66% 37 528 421
Other 12.82% 5 135 637 0.25% 282213
100.00% 40 060 287 100% 102 366 174
An amount of R8 511 583 dabt was written of - (see also note 14)
The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality eredit standing. An amount of R100 000 Is pledga as securily
on call deposits with Standard Bank. Atthough the credit risk pertaining Lo cash and cash equivalenis are considered lo be
Iow. Ihe maximym exposure gre disclosed below,
The enlity has no non-current Investmend transactions
The banks utilised by the municipality for curren! and non-curren! investments are all listed on the JSE. The credit quality of
these insttutions are avatusted based on their required SENS releases o: well as other media reports. Based on all public
lcations, the financial sustainability Is evaluated to be of high quakly and the eredit risk pertaining to thesa instiutions
are considerad to be low.
Tha risk pertaining to unpaid condit grants and subsidies sre idered to b very low. Amounts are recelvable from
natignal ang pravinclal govemment and there are no axpectations of counter party default.
All recaivables are Individually evaluated lly &t St of Fi jal Position date for Impaiment.
2015 2014
Financial assats exposed (o credit risk al year end are as follows: R R
Raceivables from | 17 864 462 10 402 B33
Recelvables from non-exchange transactions 3820135 5 880 818
Cash and Cash Eguivalants 31776400 50 893 250
Unpaid conditional grants and subsidies - M 584
43 660 997 67 291 284
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

a1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{e} Liguidiy Risk

Prudent Rquidity risk ] Implies g sufficient cash, the avallabllity of funding h an ad

of committed credil facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the reasury rnalnl-.nlns flaxibility in funding
by maintalning avallability under credit nes.

The antity's risk io liquidity is a resuft of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitmants and credil faciiities.

The lable below analyses the entity's financial Wabilities into relevant maturity groupings basad on the ramalning pericd at the
financial year end lo the contraciual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in tha table are the contraciual ungiscounted cash
flows. Batances due within 12 manths equal their camying balances as the Impact of discounting ks nol significant.

Less than 1 Betwesn 1 and & Betwesn 5 and
yaar yesrs 10 yaars Qver 10 Years
2015

Long Term Kabilities - Financa Lease Liability 292 251 561 705 - .

Capital repayments 180 510 473661

Intarest 101 742 A7 034
Long Tenm liabilities - Hire purchase Lease Liabiity B3 345 76 481 - -
Capital repayments 72 850 73082 - -
Interest 10 495 3429 - -
Trade and Other Payables 15 713 500 - - -
Unspent conditional g 1t grants and i 348 7T - - -
16 437 897 638 286 - -

Luss than 1 Between 1and 5 Betwsen 5 and
yaar years 10 years QOver 10 Years
2014

Long Term liabitiles - Finance Lease Liability 232 895 - - .
Capital repayments 203916 . - -
Interest 26978 - - -
Long Term Kabllities - Hira purchase Leasa Llability 133 825 256 469 - .
Capital repayments 107383 234 735 . -
Inlarest 28442 21764 - .
Trade and Other Payables 11 391 085 - - .
Unspent conditional govemment grants and receipts 1801337 - - -
13 558 122 50 499 . -

Page 80



a3

42t

LFF]

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordanca with GRAF 104 the financlal Instruments of the municipabty are classified as ioflows:

The fair value of financial Instrumants approximates the amortised costs as reflectad below.

Einancisl Assets

Investmants

Fixed Daposits

Recelvables

Receivables from exch I
Recer fram ¢ i

Other Recalvables

Government Subsidies and Grants
Short-tarm Investment Deposits
Call Deposits

Bank Balances and Cash

Bank Balances

Cash Figats and Advances

SUMMARY OF FINANCLAL ASSETS

Financlal instrurnents at amortised cost
Al amortised cost

Financlal Lisbility
Long-term Liabliitles

Annulty Loans

Capitalised Leasa Liability

Hire Purchasa

Payatles from sxchange transactions
Trade Fayables

Third party payables {Payroll}

- Ived In ad

Su;adrv Ceposits

Sundry Craditors

Qther Payables

Governmeni Subsidies ang Grants
Current Portion of Long-term Liabllities

Capitalised Lease Llability
Hire Purchase

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITY
Finangial Instruments at amortised cost

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Classification

Fi 18l i at miised cost
Fi dal i at fised cost
Fi at ised cost
Fl at ised cosl
Fl sl ised cost

Financlal Instruments al amortised cosl
Fingnetal Instruments at amertisad cost

Classification

Fi iali at isad cost
Finandsl instruments at amortised cost
Fi gl i at 1 cost
Fi inl i at tsed cost
Finanel at d cost
Fi ! at d cost
Fi | at ] cost
Fi } at ised cost
Financlal i al s2d cost

Financial instruments aL amonisad cosl
Financial Instruments st amortised cost

The municipality has events afier reporting dale during the financial year ended 2015/2016

di In respect of 2013/14 financlal year amounting o R 53 289 242_ as per note 30.3, was written off by council

g
Subsequent to year and.

Tha Water and Sanitation furction will b transierred to Chris Han! District Municipality on 1 July 2018.

IN-KIND DONATIONS AND ASSISTANCE

Nong
PRIVATE PUBLIC PARTNERSHIPS

Council has nat entered into any private public partnerships during the financial year

Page A1
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17 864 462 10402 833
3620135 5860 816
. 34 684
28563011 41614297
3192 247 9361 795
21 142 17 238
53 660 997 67 291 304
53 660 997 67 281 384
53 660 887 67 291 384
473861 {©)
73063 234 735
8207 542 8311 156
1035923 114 188
89 579 126213
11800 38 873
1250 841 105 812
348 701 1601337
190 510 203 916
72 850 107 383
16 962 163 14020 036
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

CONTINGENT LIABILITY 2018 2014
The municipality is being suad by Mgumane for demages whereby the llegediy suiferad ttutional damag 15 000 15 000
Tha Municipality s baing suad by B L Patu for I+ sffered dua to neghg by the K y In failing 1o and
monitor the structure of the dam wall and dam outfel of Hogsatt Dam, 120 000 120 000
The Municipaltty ks being sued by D S O'Rafly for damag H dus to negkg by the municipality In faiting to maintain
and monitor the structure of the dam wall and dam outiel of Hogsett Dam. 100 000 100 000
The municlpality has been sued by Mhlangenkuiuleko Construction cc. i alleged il entered nto an oral agreemant with the
Municipality in terms of which it was required 1o erect 8 dkm fence for the amount of R107, B95.72. This entity caimed that they
have since been paid an amount of R20, 500.00, leaving the balance of RE4, 365.72 unpald. - 84 366
Ex Gratia G ies ara payable regarding ior Sac. 56 Managers on of contract. 1155 311 1576 191
Claims against Council 1350 311 1896 1568
A—

in afl the above cases & possible obligation 1o pay for the avents remain al 30 June 2015, but uncertainty prevails of the actual time of the gutfiow of funds.
CONTINGENT ASSETS
Ikamva Construction (An Instruction was glven ta recover an ameunt for defective performance and eroneous payments.) 358 821
The icipality has i d 1o action against the said Komanl for amear municipal rales so a3 to enable us to atiend to
transfer of property between ECOC and Bootman Komanl Family 20 000
A fraud casa occurred after AFS was submitted o the amount of R332 188.84. 322 187 38 000
Claims by Council 322 187 417 821
In all the above cases. possible recovery of funds remain at 30 June 2015, but uncertainty prevails of the actusl tine of the inflow of funds.
RELATED PARTIES
Kay Management and Councillors receive and pay for s&rvices on the same terms and condilions as other ratepayers / residents.
The rates, service charges and other ges are in . with approved tariffs that wers adverlised to the public. No bad
debt exp have baen grised in respact of amounts awad by related parties.
Relatad Party Loans
None
C lon of key p )
The comp ion of kay g 1t p  Is set oul in note 24 1o the Annual Financlal Sialements,
Othar related party transactions
The following entity axist during tha yaar whara Councillors or stali hava an Interest:

Amountel [
Gounsilior/giph Member Entity Transactions Pavments made Bayments
P Greyling UNIVERSAL GARAGE R 335 242.70 R 323 063.16 R12175.54
FINAHCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Indicators or conditions that may, individually of collactivaly. cast significan! doubt about the going concern assumplion are as
follows
Financial indicators

The current ratio decreased from 2.84.1 to 1.59:1 in the period of reporting.

The average debtors' payment days decreased from 49 days (o 98 days. The debtors impairment ratio decreased to 69 % from
the pravious years BE%

No bank overdratt was utilised; the nel cash situation as at 30 June 2015 is R31 776 400 positive:

Cther indicators

Possible cutflow of recources due the cantingen! lability disciosed in note 46
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The Municipatity acled as Water Servica Provider (WSP) for the p of water and 1 servicas on behall of tha Water
Service Authortty, Chiis Hanl Disirict Musicipality. The Water Service Authority ived to tull llity for the

Ravenue functions as from 1 July 2014.

Lisbilities associated with Discontinued Qoerations 2015 2014

Employee Bensfits
Paost Retirement Sanefits - Refer (o Note 3.1 1147 585
Long Service Awards - Refer to Note 3.2 237 027
——
Total Non-turrent Employss Benafli Liabilities 12384 612
Eost Retimment Benefity
Balance 1 July 1003 146
Contribution for the year 123413
Interest Cost 82 246
Expenditure for the year -
Actuarial Loaaifzain) {71 820)
——
Total post retiremant benefits 30 Juna 1147 585
Lets: Trnster of Cumrent Portion - Nota 3.1 -
Balance 30 June 1 47 585
Lono Service Awards
Balanca 1 July 2684 040
Contribution for the year 49738
Interast Cost 19205
Expenditure for the year -
Actuarlal Loss/{Gain) {24 §79)
—
Total long service 30 June 308 994
Less;  Transfer of Cument Portion « Nals 3.2 {71 867)
Balance 30 Juna 237 027
TQTAL NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Balance 1 July 1267 186
Contribution for the year 173 181
Interest cost 111 541
Expenditure for the year 5
Actuarial Loss/{Gain) (85 889)
L ——
Total employas benefits 30 Juns 1456 579
Lass; Transier of Current Portion - Note 3.1 (71 967)
Balance 30 June 1 384 612
CURRENT EMPLOYEE RENEFITS
Current Portlon of Post Retirement Banafits - Note 5 -
Cutrenl Portion of Long-Service Provisions - Note 5 710887
Provision for Statf Leave Note 5 ar2 1
Statf Bonuses accruad Note 5 137 104
Totsl Current Employsa Banafits 881 252
The In current employes benefits is reconcliad as follows: Note 5
Ervvision for Staff Leave
Balance al beginning of year 587 683
Contribution 1o current portion 84 263
Expenditure iacumed -
Balance at end of yaar ETZ 181
Siaff Bonuses sccrued
Balance at beginning of year 107 312
Contribution to cutrent portion 29 732
Expenditure incumed .
Balsnce at end of year 137 104
_—
Total Liabilities iated with DI inued Operatl 2 265 864
Agsats associnied with Discontinusd Operations
Trade Recelvables from hang i
Water 32 816 228
Sewersge 36083 624
——
Total: Trade recelvaties from hange ir i [befors provision) - Note 15 &8 800 152
Less: Provision for Impairments - Nota 15 (68 900 152)
Water {32 816 228)
Sewerage {36 082 924)
VAT .
Total: Trada raceivablas from exchange ir: lons (afier provision) - Note 15 -
Total: Assats lated with Discontinued Operatl J——
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EMALAHLEN] MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Senvice Charges
Less: Rebales
Total Service Charges - Note 21

Interest Eamed - Quistanding Debtors
Actuarial Gains
Other Incoms

Total Revanue
EXPENDITURE

Employes related costs

Debt Impairment

Depreclation and Amortl d
Repairs and Malntenance

Other Operating Grant Expenditure
General Expenses

Total Expanditure

NET SURPLUS / [DEFECIT) FOR THE YEAR

Hote 22

Note 23

Nota 24
Nots 26
Nots 27
Note 26
Nota 31
Note 22

Fage 54

205 014
- 11188077
- 550 108
- 10 637 671
—e—
- 4338 B80S
22 393 720 23 497 037
22 393 720 38 4723 814
e
9 676 000 9506 827
. 18 348 897
o 2884
52612383 5225 798
. 141 208
7158 318 T 851 549
I3 383 720 41 307 163
———— —
- {2833 350)
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